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ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS
Unless otherwise noted or the context otherwise indicates, the “Company”, “Ciscom”, “we”,
“us” and “our” refer to Ciscom Corp. Certain terms and phrases used in this Prospectus are
defined in the “Glossary”.

Prospective purchasers should rely only on the information contained in this Prospectus. We
have not authorized any other person to provide prospective purchasers with additional or
different information. If anyone provides prospective purchasers with additional or different
or inconsistent information,including information or statements in media articles about the
Company, prospective purchasers should not rely on it. The Company is not making an offer
to sell or seeking offers to buy shares or other securities of the Company. The information
appearing in this Prospectus is accurate only as of the date othis Prospectus, regardless of
its time of delivery. The Company’s business, financial conditions, results of operations and
prospects may have changed the date of this Prospectus.

Third Party Information

This Prospectus includes market, industry and economic data which was obtained from
various publicly available sources and other sources believed by the Company to be true.
Although the Company believes it to be reliable, the Company has not independently verified
any of the data from third party sources referred to in this Prospectus or analyzed or verified
the underlying reports relied upon or referred to by such sources or ascertained the
underlying economic and other assumptions relied upon by such sources. The Company
believes that its market, industry, and economic data are accurate and that its estimates and
assumptions are reasonable, but there can be no assurance as to the accuracy or
completeness thereof. The accuracy and completeness of the market, industry, and
economic data used throughout this Prospectus are not guaranteed and the Company does
not make any representation as to the accuracy of such information. For the avoidance of
doubt, nothing stated in this paragraph operates to relieve the Issuer from liability for any
misrepresentation contained in this prospectus under applicable Canadian securities laws.

CURRENCY

In this Prospectus, unless otherwise indicated, all dollar amounts are expressed in Canadian
dollars and references to $ are to Canadian dollars.

CAUTION REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Prospectus includes statements that express our opinions, expectations, beliefs, plans,
objectives, assumptions or projections regarding future events or future results, and
therefore are, or may be deemed to be, “forward-looking statements.” These forward-
looking statements can generally be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology,
including the terms “believes”, “estimates”, “anticipates”, “expects”, “seeks”, “projects”,
“intends”, “plans”, “may”, “will” or “should” or, in each case, their negative or other
variations or comparable terminology. These forward-looking statements include all matters

that are not historical facts. They appear in a number of places throughout this Prospectus
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and include statements regarding our intentions, beliefs or current expectations
concerning, among other things, our results of operations, financial condition, liquidity,
prospects, growth, strategies, and the industry in which we operate. These statements
reflect management’s current beliefs with respect to future events and are based on
information currently available to management. Forward-looking statements involve
significant known and unknown risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Many factors could
cause the Company’s actual results, performance, or achievements to be materially
different from any future results, performance or achievements that may be expressed or
implied by such forward-looking statements, including, without limitation, those listed in the
“Risk Factors” section of this Prospectus. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties
materialize, or should assumptions underlying the forward-looking statements prove
incorrect, actual results, performance or achievements could vary materially from those
expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements contained in this Prospectus. Such
risks include, but are not limited to: a decrease in the value of the shares; the ability of the
Company to continue as a going concern; dependence on key personnel; the Company’s early
stage of development; potential losses on investments; unstable and potentially negative
economic conditions; fluctuations in interest rates; competition for investments within the
Canadian real estate sector; maintenance of client relationships; obtaining and maintaining a
listing on the CSE; risks related to potential dilution in the event of future financings; no
previous public market for the shares; volatility of the market price for shares; dual class
share structure; and risks related to whether the Company will ever be in a position to
declare and pay dividends. See “Risk Factors” for a complete list of risks relating to an
investment in the Company. By their nature, forward-looking statements involve risks
and uncertainties because they relate to events and depend on circumstances that may or
may not occur in the future. Those factors should not be construed as exhaustive and should
be read with the other cautionary statements in this Prospectus.

These factors should be considered carefully, and prospective investors should not place
undue reliance on the forward-looking statements. Although we base our forward-looking
statements on assumptions that we believe were reasonable when made, which assumptions
include, but are not limited to the Company’s future growth potential, results of operations,
future prospects and opportunities, execution of the Company’s business strategy, a stable
workforce, no material variations in the current tax and regulatory environments, future
levels of indebtedness and the current economic conditions remaining unchanged, we
caution you that forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and
that our actual results of operations, financial condition and liquidity, and the development
of the industry in which we operate may differ materially from those made in or suggested
by the forward-looking statements contained in this Prospectus. In addition, even if our results
of operations, financial condition and liquidity, and the development of the industry in which
we operate are consistent with the forward-looking statements contained in this Prospectus,
those results or developments may not be indicative of results or developments in
subsequent periods.

e the timing and receipt of approvals and consents required;

e planned acquisitions and negotiated purchased prices;

e revenue and costs synergies;

e information with respect to the Company’s future financial and operating
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performance; and,
e  expectations regarding the ability to raise capital and the availability of funds.

Such forward-looking statements or information are based on a number of assumptions
which may prove to be incorrect. In addition to any other assumptions identified in this
Prospectus, assumptions have been made regarding, among other things:

e the timely receipt of required regulatory and exchange approvals and other
necessary consents;

e the ability to obtain debt financing on acceptable terms;

e  conditions in general economic and financial markets;

e timing and amount of capital expenditures, where required;

e the Company’s or its subsidiary’s ultimate ability, as applicable, to operate
profitably;

o effects of regulation by governmental agencies; and

e future operating costs.

The actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking
statements as a result of the risk factors set forth below and elsewhere in this Prospectus:

e general commercial risks inherent to operating non-manufacturing businesses;

e  the capital requirements of the Company and ability to maintain adequate capital
resources to carry out its business activities;

e therisk that the Company is unable to list its Shares on a stock exchange;

e industry competition;

e inflation and fluctuations in interest rates;

e  stock market volatility and capital market valuation;

e funds may not be available to the Company on terms acceptable to the Company
or at all;

e financing risks and dilution to shareholders resulting from future financing
activities;

e reliance on management and dependence on key personnel;

e conflicts of interest;

e general market and industry conditions; and

e the COVID-19 pandemic and its short-term and long-term effects on the global
economy.

Any forward-looking statements which we make in this Prospectus speak only as of the date
of such statement, and we do not undertake, except as required by applicable law, any
obligation to update such statements or to publicly announce the results of any revisions to
any such statements to reflect future events or developments. Comparisons of results for
current and any prior periods are not intended to express any future trends or indications of
future performance, unless expressed as such, and should only be viewed as historical data.
All of the forward-looking statements made in this Prospectus are qualified by these
cautionary statements.

All monetary amounts in this prospectus are expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise
10



indicated.

ELIGIBILITY FOR INVESTMENT

Investors should consult their investment, legal and tax advisors and regarding their
investments in the Company and eligibility to savings and retirement plans.
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GLOSSARY
The following is a glossary of certain terms used in this Prospectus. Terms and abbreviations used in
the Financial Statements may be defined separately and the terms defined below may not be used
therein.
“Audit Committee” means the Audit Committee of the Company in accordance with NI 52-110.
“Auditors” means SRCO Professional Corporation, Chartered Professional Accountants.

“Board” means the board of directors of the Company.

“CBLT” means CBLT Inc., a reporting issuer in the provinces of British Columbia, Alberta and Ontario
currently trading on the CSE;

“CBLT Option” means the Option Agreement signed on October 2, 2020 between CBLT and the
Company that were exercised in its entirety on February 28, 2021.

“CEO” means Chief Executive Officer.

“CFO” means Chief Financial Officer.

“Chairman” or “Executive Chairman” means the chairman of the Board.

“Ciscom Financial Statements” means the Company’s IFRS audited financial statements and related
notes thereto for the period from incorporation on June 29, 2020 to December 31, 2020 and for the
year ended December 31, 2021.

“Ciscom Options” means the options issued under the Stock Option Plan.

“Ciscom Securities” means, collectively, the Common Shares, Ciscom Options and Ciscom Warrants.
“Ciscom Shareholders” means the holders of outstanding Common Shares from time to time.
“Common Shares” means common shares in the capital of Ciscom.

“Company” and “Ciscom” mean Ciscom Corp., a company incorporated under the OBCA.

“CSE” means the Canadian Securities Exchange.

“CSE Policies” means the policies of the CSE, as amended from time to time.

“Escrow Agreement” means the escrow agreement to be entered into between TSX Trust and certain
shareholders of the Company with respect to the listing on the CSE.

“Escrowed Securities” means the securities subject to the restrictions pursuant to the Escrow
Agreement.
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“IFRS” means International Financial Reporting Standards.

“Listing” means the proposed listing of the Common Shares on the CSE for trading.
“Listing Date” means the date of Listing.

“MD&A” means Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

“MFD” means Market Focus Direct Inc., a company incorporated under the OBCA located in
Markham, Ontario, and following the Closing of the MFD Acquisition, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company.

“MFD Acquisition” means the acquisition of MFD by way of cash and an issuance of Common Shares
by the Company.

“MFD Financial Statements” Means MFD’s IFRS audited financial statements and the related notes
thereto for the year ended December 31, 2020.

“MFD Shares” means the common shares of MFD.

“MFD Share Purchase Agreement” or “MFD SPA” means the acquisition agreement dated August 29,
2020 between Ciscom Corp. and Market Focus Direct Inc. and its shareholders, as subsequently
amended.

“NEO” means “Named Executive Officer”, and has the meaning ascribed by the OSC in Form 51-
102F6, as follows:
(a) Company’s Chairman & CEO;
(b) Company’s President & CFO; and
(c) each of the two most highly compensated executive officers of the Company, including
subsidiaries, other than the Chairman & CEO and President & CFO, at the end of the most
recently completed financial year whose total compensation was, individually, more than
$150,000 for that financial year.

“NI52-110” means National Instrument 52-110 — Audit Committees.

“NP 46-201” means National Policy 46-201 — Escrow for Initial Public Offerings.

“NP 58-201” means National Policy 58-201 — Corporate Governance Guidelines.

“OBCA” means the Business Corporations Act (Ontario), as it may be amended from time to time.
“OSC” means the Ontario Securities Commission.

“Performance Warrants” means Warrants that may be issued to senior management of the Company

as further described under the heading “Options and Warrants to Purchase Securities- Performance
Warrants”.
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“PIPEDA” means the Personal Information Protection and Electronic Documents Act (Canada).

“PMG” means Prospect Media Group Ltd., a company incorporated under the OBCA located in
Toronto, Ontario, and a wholly owned subsidiary of 1880nt.

“Preferred Shares” means the preferred shares without par value in the capital of the Company.
“President” means the president of the Company.

“Pro Forma Financial Statements” means the unaudited December 31, 2022 year-end pro forma
financial statements in Schedules “S” through “T”, giving effect to the 1880nt Acquisition as if it had
taken place as of January 1, 2021.

“Prospectus” means this non-offering prospectus dated June 5, 2023.

“SEDAR” means the System for Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval.

“Stock Option Plan” means the executive stock option plan adopted by the Board on July 15, 2020.
“Tax Act” means the Income Tax Act (Canada), as it may be amended from time to time.

“TSX” means the Toronto Stock Exchange.

“TSXV” means the TSX Venture Exchange.

“Warrants” means the Common Shares purchase warrants of the Company.

“1880nt” means 1883713 Ontario Inc., a company incorporated under the OBCA located in Toronto,

Ontario, and owning 100% of all outstanding shares of PMG.

“1880nt Acquisition” means the acquisition of 1880nt by way of cash and a share issuance by the

Company.

“1880nt Earn-Out” means the earn-out payable by Ciscom under the 1880nt Acquisition, which is payable
in Common Shares valued at $0.45 per share and can be increased to a maximum amount of $1,500,000
based on an aggregate revenue increase of 14.5% for the years 2022 and 2023 when compared to 2021.

“1880nt Financial Statements” means 1880nt’s IFRS audited financial statements and the related notes

thereto for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2021.

“1880nt Share Purchase Agreement” or “1880nt SPA” means the share purchase agreement dated

January 26, 2022 between Ciscom Corp. and 1880nt and its shareholders, as subsequently amended.
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PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

The following is a summary of the principal features of the Company and should be read together with the
more detailed information and financial data and statements contained elsewhere in this Prospectus.

The Company and its Business

Ciscom was incorporated under the OBCA on June 29, 2020 with the intention of investing in, managing and
acquiring other companies in the Information, Communications and Technology (“ICT”) sector. Since the date
of its incorporation, the Company closed the MFD Acquisition and the 1880nt Acquisition. For a detailed
description of the Company see “Corporate Structure” and “Description of the Business”.

Management, Directors & Officers
As of the date of this Prospectus, the senior management members of the Company are:

Drew Reid: Executive Chairman & CEO, Director, and Promoter
Michel Pepin: President & CFO, Corporate Secretary, Director and Promoter

See “Directors and Officers” for more details.
Acquisition of MFD

On August 29", 2020, Ciscom entered into a SPA to acquire 100% of all issued and outstanding shares of MFD
from its shareholders. The Share Purchase Agreement was subsequently amended to change the closing date
and the nature of the purchase price consideration for the MFD Acquisition. Closing of the MFD Acquisition
occurred on September 1, 2021.

Under the MFD SPA, Ciscom has purchased 100% of all issued and outstanding shares of MFD for an amount of
$3,500,000 which was satisfied with the payment of $1,000,000 in cash and $2,500,000 in Common Shares
valued at $0.25 per share (share issuance of 10,000,000 Common Shares). The selling shareholders of MFD are
entitled to an Earn-Out (“MFD Earn-Out”) in a maximum amount of $500,000 based on cumulative revenue
increases of 26% for the years 2022 and 2023 when compared to 2020.

Ciscom also raised debt financing with a Canadian Schedule 1 chartered bank, in the amount of $1,000,000 to
satisfy the cash portion of the MFD Acquisition.

Acquisition of 1880nt

On January 26™, 2022, Ciscom entered into a SPA to acquire all issued and outstanding shares of 1880nt from
its shareholders. The Share Purchase Agreement was subsequently amended to change the closing date and
the nature of the purchase price consideration for the 1880nt Acquisition. Closing of the 1880nt Acquisition
occurred on September 30, 2022.

Under the 1880nt SPA, Ciscom purchased all issued and outstanding shares of 1880nt for an amount of
$12,488,481 which was satisfied with a cash payment of $5,800,000, a short-term loan payable in 2023 in the
amount of $1,163,521, an earn-out of $689,710, a convertible debenture of $1,400,000 and $3,435,250 in
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Common Shares valued at $0.45 per share, resulting in a share issuance of 7,633,889 Common Shares. The
earn-out (“1880nt Earn-Out”) is payable in Common Shares valued at $0.45 per share and can be increased to
a maximum amount of $1,500,000 based on an aggregate revenue increase of 14.5% for the years 2022 and
2023 when compared to 2021.

Ciscom secured a credit facility with HSBC Bank Canada, an international Canadian Schedule Il chartered bank,
in the amount of $6,000,000 to satisfy the cash portion of the 1880nt Acquisition and repay the remaining
portion of the loan taken for the MFD Acquisition.

Selected Financial Information

The following table sets out selected audited financial information for Ciscom. It should be read in
conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis” and the Company’s audited financial statements as
at December 31, 2022 and the notes thereto and the Combined Financial Statements attached as Schedule “U”
and Schedule “V” to this Prospectus. The selected financial information is derived from the audited financial
statements for the period ended December 31, 2022. The Company has established December 31 as its financial
year end.

Financial Statement Heading Year Ended December 31, 2022 Year Ended December 31, 2021

Current Assets $9,148,947 $1,767,618
Non-Current Assets $14,654,630 $2,854,875
Total Assets $23,803,577 $4,622,493
Current Liabilities 512,079,948 $1,117,021
Non-Current Liabilities $5,811,317 $1,647,220
Total Liabilities $17,891,265 $2,764,241
Total Shareholders’ Equity $5,912,312 $1,858,252
Revenue $14,766,407 $1,132,076
Cost of Revenue $12,468,249 $941,425
Gross Profit $2,298,158 $190,651
Total Expenses $4,059,059 $2,246,016
Net Loss and Comprehensive Loss (51,545,364) ($2,011,032)
Basic and Diluted Loss Per Share (0.035) (0.075)

Estimated Funds Available and Use of Proceeds

No securities are being offered pursuant to this Prospectus. This Prospectus is being filed with the OSC for the
purpose of allowing the Company to become a reporting issuer in such jurisdiction and to enable the Company
to develop an organized market for its Common Shares. Since no securities are being offered pursuant to this
Prospectus, no proceeds will be raised, and all expenses incurred in connection with the preparation and filing
of this Prospectus will be paid by the Company from general corporate funds.

Estimated Funds Available

As of December 31, 2021, the Company had $1,006,133 in cash (2020: $6,066). These funds are related to
MFD’s ongoing operations and proceeds from private placements in the Company less cost of operations.
Following the acquisition of 1880nt, on September 30, 2022, the Company had $1,708,683 in cash and no
investment(s) and a negative working capital of $2,948,610. On April 30, 2023, the Company had $221,811 in
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cash and a negative working capital of $3,130,753. The negative working capital is related to a one-time
purchase price payment of $1,163,521 due for the acquisition of 1880nt and the revolving operating loan
financing obtained from HSBC in the amount of $2,500,000 used to complete the 1880nt Acquisition that must
be presented as a current liability under IFRS. This $2,500,000 revolving operating loan has no repayment
requirement and remains at that level at all times. The availability of funds and the Company’s ability to raise
and generate revenue over the next 12-month period may vary significantly and will depend on several factors
including those set out in “Risk Factors”.

Following the acquisition of 1880nt, the Company’s consolidated operations are profitable and has positive
cash flow. On-going corporate operational expenses are projected at $537,000 in year 1 which will be covered
by management fess charged to its subsidiaries. Should the consolidated business not perform to expected
levels, senior management compensation will be suspended until the financial performance has been re-
established. The breakdown of such expenses are as follows:

Expenses

Office and General.............oooiiiiiiiii e $ 92,000
COMPENSALION...ccciiiiiiirtneicriiere s sesessseesssassssasesasssssessesasssns sesanesassssansssensssnssenasssnsasnses senases 300,000
Professional FEES...........c.uiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 100,000
Advertising and PromotioN................ccciiiiiiiii e 45 000
Lo - | OO O PP T PP PP PPRTRPPPPPRIOS $ 537,000

During the months of October and November 2022, Ciscom raised additional equity in the amount of $135,000.
On September 29, 2022, the related party loan and debenture in the total amount of $200,000 were converted
to Common Shares.

The 1880nt Acquisition closed on September 30, 2022. 1880nt is a profitable entity producing operating
income before income taxes of over $2,000,000 per year. 1880nt has low capital expenditures and no debt. As
such, cash flows closely align to net income (before shareholders’ distributions/dividends). Consequently, on a
consolidated basis, Ciscom has sufficient liquidity and working capital to sustain operations going forward.

Ciscom has had negative operating cash flows from operations since its inception. As of the date of close of the
1880nt Acquisition, the Company earns management fees from its subsidiaries.

The current global uncertainty with respect to the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”), the consistently evolving
nature of the pandemic and local and international developments related thereto and its effect on the broader
global economy and capital markets may have a negative effect on the Company. See “Risk Factors- COVID-19
Coronavirus Outbreak” for further information.

The actual amount that the Company spends may vary significantly and will depend on several factors including
those listed under the heading “Risk Factors.” See “Use of Available Funds” for further details.

The Listing
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The Company has applied to list its Common Shares on the CSE. Listing will be subject to the Company’s fulfilling
all of the listing requirements of the CSE, including, without limitation, ensuring that the minimum number of
public shareholders of the Company meets the minimum listing requirements.

Business Objectives and Milestones

The principal business carried on and intended to be carried on by the Company is the acquisition and
development of the businesses it acquires. Ciscom operates as a technology roll up focused management
company in the information, communications and technology, or ICT, sector. Ciscom seeks to acquire small to
medium size enterprises, or SME’s, with a proven history of profitability, positive cash flows and growth
potential.

Current focus is on technology driven big data marketing, advertising, document processing and content
management organizations. Ciscom is a long-term investor that buys and holds businesses and works with
management on growth plans.

Selling entrepreneurs are typically seeking equity transition and do not have a proper succession plan. The
entrepreneurs must commit to stay on for a period of 2 to 3 years, post acquisition to ensure a proper and
orderly transition of the business to a professional management.

Part of the strategy is to implement significant synergies and leverages at all levels, including the following:

Cross selling initiatives and economies of scale;
Expense reductions;

Financial levers;

Operational; and

Management principles.

vk wnN e

The Company plans on proceeding with additional acquisitions following the completion of the 1880nt
Acquisition. Any potential acquisition involves finding a suitable target, completing due diligence, entering
into appropriate transaction documents and lining up bank loan or other financing in order to complete same.
Owing to the inherent uncertainty surrounding this process along with general economic conditions, it is
difficult to project specific timeframes as to when these would be completed.

From inception to April 30, 2023, the Company’s NEOs have received $270,000 in cash compensation ($20,000
from inception to April 30, 2022). Market level cash compensations are not planned to be paid to NEOs until
the Company has achieved positive consolidated net income. The actual amount that the Company spends in
connection with each intended use of funds may vary significantly from the amounts specified above and will
depend on several factors including those listed under the heading “Risk Factors.” See “Use of Available
Funds” for further details.

Risk Factors

Any future investment in the Common Shares should be considered highly speculative and investors may incur
a loss on their investment. The risks, uncertainties and other factors, many of which are beyond the control of
the Company, that could influence actual results include, but are not limited to: insufficient capital; no
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established market; limited operating history; lack of operating cash flow; resale of shares; price volatility of
publicly traded securities; market for securities; risks associated with acquisitions; executive employee
recruitment and retention; adverse general economic conditions; claims and legal proceedings; force majeure;
uncertainty of use of proceeds; competition; conflicts of interest; dividends; litigation; the ongoing COVID-19
pandemic; reporting issuer status; tax issues; and inflation and fluctuations in interest rates. See the section
entitled “Risk Factors” for details of these and other risks relating to the Company’s business.
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE

The Company was incorporated on June 29, 2020 as Ciscom Corp. under the OBCA. Articles of Incorporation
have not been amended. The Company has its principal and registered offices located at 20 Bay Street, Suite
1110, Toronto, Ontario, M5J 2N8.

Currently the Company has one (1) subsidiary, MFD, which is incorporated under the OBCA and wholly owned.
MFD has three (3) authorized classes of shares:

1. Unlimited number of common shares with no stated par value with one vote per share;
2. Unlimited number of class A shares with no stated par value with one vote per share; and,
3. Unlimited number of class B shares with no stated par value with one vote per share.

MFD issued capital is 10,000 MFD Shares, all of which are owned by the Company. MFD remains a wholly owned
subsidiary of Ciscom and will continue to operate as an independent business. MFD has its principal and
registered offices located at 550 Alden Road, Suite 207, Markham, Ontario, L3R 6AS.

Under the 1880nt SPA the Company has acquired a second subsidiary, 1880nt who owns 100% of PMG, both
of which were incorporated under the OBCA. 1880nt has five (5) authorized classes of shares:

Unlimited number of class 1 common shares, one vote per share, without par value,
Unlimited number of class 2 common shares, non-voting share, without par value,
Unlimited number of class A shares, one vote per share, with no stated par value,
Unlimited number of class B shares, non-voting share, with no stated par value, and
Unlimited number of class C shares, one vote per share, with no stated par value.
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1880nt issued capital is 100 class 1 common shares, 100 class 2 common shares and 750,000 class A shares.
Once acquired, 1880nt will remain a wholly owned subsidiary of Ciscom and will continue to operate as an
independent business.

MFD and PMG (subsidiary of 1880nt) are long standing competitors in the same industry. As such the
“Narrative Description Of The Business” below covers both MFD and PMG.

DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS
The Business of the Company

The Company’s principal business is investing in and acquiring companies operating in the ICT sector and
playing an active role in the management of these companies to mitigate risk and maximize growth. The
Company defines itself as an enabling business accelerator. Through ownership of Common Shares, the general
public has an opportunity to participate in the financial growth of the investments and acquisitions made by
Ciscom in these companies, either as wholly owned subsidiaries or minority investment stakes. The Company
does not have a minimum dollar size or ownership percentage for such investment stakes, and would consider
investment in any type of securities.

Ciscom targets companies in the following areas:
1. The ICT sector; and
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2. Companies using technology as a way to process data and incorporate external databases, documents
and information to deliver products and services.

Such investments shall be within North America and may be conducted through the purchase of any type of
equity or debt securities of the target company.

In addition to its investment and acquisition activities, the Company’s business mandate includes the
negotiating strategic joint ventures and the identification of the implementation of synergies through shared
services.

The business of the Company includes the management of its investments and acquisitions to improve long-
term performance. The Company invests and acquires small to medium size enterprises/businesses (“SME”)
with growth potential and is paying moderate acquisition prices, based on proven profitability track records,
which lowers risks and shortens the return on capital period.

In addition to providing returns to its investors, Ciscom provides an exit strategy to entrepreneurs. Currently
there is significant inter-generational wealth transfers which create an increased influx of offers to sell, while
there are limited opportunities being offered to the SME market participants. The Company addresses this gap
in the market.

The Company charges investees a management fee for its services. The Company’s second investment closed
on September 30 2022. The Company has not identified any potential additional acquisition and is not in
discussion with any other organization to this effect. The Company may not be able to identify other target
acquisition and/or successfully close on acceptable terms providing accretion to shareholder value.

Ciscom believes that its success will be dependent on its systemic business and selection approach to mergers
and acquisitions (“M&A”) and the experience and expertise of its senior management team.

The Company’s executive officers and board of directors have considerable experience in several industries
which will provide the Company with the ability to develop valuable insights and complete transactions
efficiently and expeditiously. See “Directors and Officers”. The Company's philosophy and strategy is to follow
a disciplined and systematic approach to investments and is guided by four (4) core principles which will be
applied consistently across all transactions, each of which is described in further detail below:

® (Capital Preservation;

® Profitable Income Growth Potential;
® Risk Management; and

® Shareholder Value.

1. Capital Preservation: This principle is at the core of the Company’s investment guidelines. Ciscom
will focus on investing in companies with an historic of stable, predictable and positive cash flows.
The Company will not invest in pre-revenue early-stage organizations.

2. Profitable Income Growth Potential: Making investments that are already profitable and that have
the potential for growth and additional cash flows for re-investment and eventual shareholders’
dividend payments.

3. Risk Management: The Company’s management will take on an active role in each of its investments
and acquisitions by means such as controlling the respective board of directors representation,
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governance matrices and weekly operational reviews with investee management and their operators.

4. Shareholder Value: The principal driver of the Company’s corporate initiatives, and investment
decisions, is the objective of creating and enhancing long-term value for its shareholders. With is M&A
approach, investments made will be accretive to shareholder value on day one.

The Company will not sit on non-performing and idling cash of a material nature for more than six months. It
will invest in accordance with its investment criteria or return its excess cash to shareholders. Ciscom will work
with management of operating investee companies in order to create and enhance value. These activities will
include equity financing, developing mergers and acquisitions, providing operational management support and
structuring and negotiating debt and equity placements.

Competitive Conditions

The Company’s business of M&A and the ensuing active management has several participants operating at
different levels. Most participants are targeting medium to large size organizations, which are typically large
conglomerates and private equity funds. Larger and smaller participants and competitors are expected to
continue to enter into market. Some of those competitors may be better known, may have greater financial
resources and may have more established operating histories than Ciscom.

The Company differentiates itself from its competitors (other participants) through its unique market approach
and investment philosophy, the significant experience and expertise of its executive officers and its Board of
Directors. There are very few participants in the SMEs M&A sector able to acquire complementary businesses
with growth potential where leverage and synergies can be realized, in addition to providing an orderly
transition for the exiting entrepreneurs, thus ensuring continued performance of the acquired businesses.

Initial Investment — Market Focus Direct

Market Focus Direct Inc.

Ciscom owns all of the issued and outstanding MFD Shares, consisting of 10,000 MFD Shares. MFD does not
have subsidiaries or investments in other entities.

Name, Address and Incorporation

MFD was incorporated pursuant to the OBCA on November 15%, 1991 under the name Market Focus
Distribution Services Inc. The articles of incorporation of MFD were subsequently amended on September 17,
1996 to create an unlimited number of preference shares, and on May 26™, 2010 to change the name to Market
Focus Direct Inc.

MFD’s articles were further amended on December 20, 2013 to cancel the preference shares and issue an
unlimited number of Class A shares, an unlimited number of Class B shares and to redesignate, subdivide and
change all of the seventy-five (75) issued and outstanding common shares of MFD as and in a total of one
million (1,000,000) Class B shares and seventy-five (75) common shares. In addition, the articles were amended
on March 16, 2016 to subdivide the common shares from seventy-five (75) shares to ten thousand (10,000)
shares, and all of the issued and outstanding Class B shares were redeemed in 2016 (900,000 shares) and 2017
(100,000 shares).
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The head and records and registered office of MFD are located at 550 Alden Rd, Suite 207 Markham Ontario
L3R 6A8, Canada. MFD has no subsidiaries.

Intangible Properties

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess purchase price over the fair value of identifiable assets acquired less liabilities
assumed from business combinations. Goodwill is not amortized. The Company reviews goodwill annually for
impairment but impairment may be reviewed earlier if circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired through asset acquisitions or business combinations are initially recognized at fair
value. The intangible assets with definite lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives unless such lives are deemed indefinite. The Company evaluates the reasonableness of the estimated
useful lives of these intangible assets on an annual basis. The Company reviews intangible assets with indefinite
lives annually for impairment but impairment may be reviewed earlier if circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Customer Relationships 6 years

Brand Name 6 years

Technology 6 years
Goodwill impairment

Goodwill and Intangibles are two separate items. Goodwill represents the value paid over both the tangible
and intangible assets.

As such, the goodwill impairment threshold is set at a low level and any negative impact on the future earnings
of the entity results to partial or full impairment. In the case of MFD, in light of its future earnings level for 2022
through 2026 insufficient to justify the goodwill, IFRS required a full write-off of the goodwill.

Intangibles impairment

Intangibles have a higher threshold for impairment. They value the brand, technology and customers’
relationship. The brand name would be impaired if disrepute were to come to the entity. Technology would be
impaired if it’s no longer used in the business. MFD has been in business for over 30 years and is very reputable
and the proprietary technology developed is in full use.

As for customer relationships, it represents an intangible asset that has separate and distinct value apart from
other purchased intangible assets. Specifically, MFD has established long-term relationships with mature
customers with an appetite for innovative marketing solutions. These customer contracts and relationships are
anticipated to result in repeat business and the renewal of revenue for the Company and contribute to its
overall profitability.
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The Intangibles asset are also amortized over a period of time which account for a pseudo built in annual
impairment. In MFD’s case the amortization is over a period of 6 years or 16.67% per year.

Second Investment — 1880nt (Prospect Media Group)

1883713 Ontario Inc. and Prospect Media Group Ltd.

Pursuant to the closing of the 1880nt Acquisition of September 30, 2022, Ciscom owns all of the issued and
outstanding 1880nt, consisting of 100 class 1 common shares, 100 class 2 common shares and 750,000 class A
shares. 1880nt only has one asset, which is Prospect Media Group, a wholly owned subsidiary.

Name, Address and Incorporation

1880nt was incorporated pursuant to the OBCA on October 30, 2012. PMG predecessor entity, Prospect Media
Inc., was incorporated pursuant to the OBCA on December 1, 1998. On January 1, 2014, Prospect Media Inc.
and Stratafly Inc. amalgamated into a new corporation, Prospect Media Group Ltd. On the amalgamation date,
1880nt owned 46% of PMG. 1880nt purchased the other 54% of PMG on January 1, 2019.

The head and records and registered office of 1880nt were located at 19 Langmuir Crescent in Toronto, Ontario
M6S2A8. Following the 1880nt Acquisition the registered office is being relocated to Ciscom’s offices. PMG’s
office lease ended in November 2020 and management decided to operate 100% virtually since December
2020.

Intangible Properties
Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess purchase price over the fair value of identifiable assets acquired less liabilities
assumed from business combinations. Goodwill is not amortized. The Company reviews goodwill annually for
impairment but impairment may be reviewed earlier if circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired through asset acquisitions or business combinations are initially recognized at fair
value. The intangible assets with definite lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives unless such lives are deemed indefinite. The Company evaluates the reasonableness of the estimated
useful lives of these intangible assets on an annual basis. The Company reviews intangible assets with indefinite
lives annually for impairment but impairment may be reviewed earlier if circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Customer Relationships 4-6 years
Intellectual Property 4-6 years
Goodwill impairment
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Goodwill and Intangibles are two separate items. Goodwill represents the value paid over both the tangible
and intangible assets.

As such, the goodwill impairment threshold is set at a low level and any negative impact on the future earnings
of the entity results to partial or full impairment.

Intangibles impairment

Intangibles have a higher threshold for impairment. They value the brand, technology and customers’
relationship. The brand name would be impaired if disrepute were to come to the entity. Technology would be
impaired if it’s no longer used in the business. PMG has been in business for over 10 years and is very reputable
and the proprietary technology developed is in full use.

As for customer relationships, it represents an intangible asset that has separate and distinct value apart from
other purchased intangible assets. Specifically, PMG has established long-term relationships with mature
customers with an appetite for innovative marketing solutions. These customer contracts and relationships are
anticipated to result in repeat business and the renewal of revenue for the Company and contribute to its
overall profitability.

The Intangible assets are also amortized over a period of time which account for a pseudo built in annual
impairment. In PMG’s case the amortization is over a period of 4 to 6 years or 16.67% to 25% per year.

NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS

Both MFD and 1880nt (together, the “Acquired Corporations”) are technology driven direct marketing
organizations that have developed unique proprietary software applications which enables the processing of
big data very efficiently. On a day-to-day basis, the corporations provide retail analytics, digital and integrated
media services, direct mail, flyer distribution management, and related services to Canadian retailers and
business-to-consumer companies. The corporations use proprietary sophisticated software applications (IP) to
provide fully customized marketing solutions to retail customers in a wide range of industries. The corporations’
value lies in applying dynamic, customer transaction data, combined with consumer behavioural data, to
develop an optimized and integrated media channel mix to reach client target audiences.

Ciscom completed the MFD Acquisition on September 1, 2021. Under the SPA, Ciscom purchased 100% of all
issue and outstanding shares of MFD for an amount of $3,500,000 to be satisfied with the payment of
$1,000,000 in cash and $2,500,000 in Common Shares valued at $0.25 per share (share issuance being
10,000,000 Common Shares). In addition of the purchase price, the selling shareholders of MFD are entitled to
an Earn-Out in a maximum amount of $500,000 based on cumulative revenue increases of 26% for the years
2022 and 2023 when compared to 2020.

In December 2020, MFD, with the approval of Ciscom, declared a dividend in the amount of $640,000
(subsequently paid in 2021) to its shareholders. MFD declared a dividend in the amount of $1,159,486 to its
shareholders just before the Closing.

Ciscom completed the 1880nt Acquisition on September 30, 2022. Under the 1880nt SPA, Ciscom purchased
all of the issued and outstanding shares of 1880nt for an amount of $12,488,481 satisfied with the payment
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of $5,800,000 in cash, a short-term loan payable in 2023 in the amount of $1,163,521, an earn-out of $689,710,
a convertible debenture of $1,400,000 and $3,435,250 in Common Shares valued at $0.45 per resulting in a
share issuance of 7,633,889 Common Shares. The 1880nt Earn-Out is payable in Common Shares valued at
$0.45 per share and can be increased to a maximum amount of $1,500,000 based on an aggregate revenue
increase of 14.5% for the years 2022 and 2023 when compared to 2021.

As part of the 1880nt Acquisition, Ciscom secured a credit facility in the amount of $6,000,000 with HSBC Bank
Canada, an international Canadian Schedule Il chartered bank to satisfy a portion of the cash portion of the

purchase price.

Significant Acquisitions and Dispositions

MFD, 1880nt and PMG have made no significant acquisitions or dispositions since their incorporation save for
the transactions detailed in the previous page.

General

The Acquired Corporations’ revenue mix, which is all driven by technology thus requiring lower resources, is
composed of flyer distribution management services, orienting and direct mail, digital/media and analytics
services. The corporations’ suite of analytical, targeting, and management tools help retailers meet and exceed
their marketing goals by providing customer and trade area analysis, insights and business intelligence, media
planning and flyer program management.

The technology platforms are exhaustive and agile, thus enabling the customization of clients’ solutions and
programs to fit their strategy and objectives. Ciscom believes that the mutual IPs provide the corporations with

the ability to processed detailed big data more efficiently than their average competitors.

Principal Products and Services

The main products and services provided by Acquired Corporations are:

1. Consumer Data & Analytics — Through proprietary analysis of client point of sale (POS) data (transaction
data linked to customer postal code), identifying the highest value, highest opportunity consumers and
households within retail trade areas. This data is applied to build a targeted, integrated media strategy
focused on driving incremental traffic and sales (in-store & e-commerce).

2. Print Flyer Management — significant expertise in the print flyer and direct mail industry, leveraging data
to ensure flyers are used effectively within an integrated media strategy. Turnkey flyer and direct mail
management services are provided including printing, targeting, strategy, household distribution (via
newspaper or Canada Post) and measurement of programs.

3. Digital Media Management — plans and buys digital media for its clients, including search engine
marketing (SEM), social, display/programmatic, contextual, digital flyer, audio and video.

4. Broadcast & Out of Home (OOH) — provides full planning of all core media tactics including TV, radio,
OOH and other specialty tactics.

5. Integrated Media Strategy — leverages its data and analytic expertise to develop fully integrated media
strategy for its clients, ranging from the creation of consumer personas, market share analysis, media
mix planning & channel investment recommendations, media performance and measurement.
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Considering PIPEDA, federal privacy and anti-Spam legislation and limitations imposed on emails and such,
physical direct mail is an effective way to market to the public.

Market & Revenue Growth

The Acquired Corporations’ revenue generation initiatives can be classified in three (3) main activities:

1. Direct solicitation: dedicated business development professionals knocking on doors daily introducing
the entity and soliciting business nationally.

2. Account management: the account managers (clients’ services) are always looking for additional work,
projects and budgets from clients and grow the partnership within.

3. Corporate: the corporations’ are key figures and presences in the industry. Having led several initiatives
and on the boards of industry organizations, the corporations have high visibility in the flyer distribution
sphere.

The Acquired Corporations’ revenue mix are heavily technology driven. Their suite of analytical, targeting,
digital and management tools help retailers meet and exceed their marketing goals by providing customer and
trade area analysis, insights and business intelligence, media planning and direct mail program management.

The above is supported by the Acquired Corporations’ sound client and supplier relationships, favorable
reputations in their markets and referrals. Furthermore, management has upheld both corporations’ firm
commitment to providing clients with the best possible products and services, timely delivery, and superior
service at competitive prices.

The Acquired Corporations serve the retail and business to consumer (B2C) sectors nationally (Canada),
specializing in medium and large-sized organizations, thus serving major recognizable brands/clients.

Growth

The Acquired Corporations’ goals are to grow their sales and profitability through the following key initiatives:
Further develop the sales force;

Increased marketing spending;

Geographic diversification;

Introducing new products and services;

Pricing reviews;

Strategic procurement; and

Creating a shared services environment.

NouhswnNek

Gains in operating efficiencies

Through automation, the Acquired Corporations were able to gain significant operational efficiency and reduce
human error. The continued investment in technology will further honed MFD’s service offering and widened
its client base.

Technology & Established leading market position

The Acquired Corporations use their information technology systems to manage their operations and, in
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particular, for the efficient functioning of their respective businesses, including accounting, data storage,
purchasing and inventory management, supply chain management, customer data gathering, task automation,
financial data generation and providing insight on consumer habits and spending. The ability to process big
data from all sources including POS systems and other information technology systems enables management
to more efficiently conduct their operations and gather, analyze and assess information across all business
segments and geographic locations. The corporations believe that their information technology systems are
sufficient to support operations and growth and provide the corporations with the information that they need
to effectively run their business in the upcoming years.

KQuest Analytics is an owned asset

KQuest Analytics, MFD’s flagship, proprietary software application, is a unique and powerful suite of analytical
tools designed and built for the retailer industry. It generates powerful, decision-making insights about
customers and market areas based on demographics, consumer spending, media usage and lifestyle traits. This
allows retailers to target their adverting more effectively in all theatres, including flyers, direct mail, radio,
digital, newspaper and social media.

Capabilities of the analytical software include:

1. ROl analysis, demographics analysis, media analysis and lifestyle personas.

2. The Phoenix mail manager is a robust software designed to provide comprehensive direct mail program
management. Built to manage franchise-based programs, it handles any eventuality in the very
complex direct mail distribution process. It integrates with KQuest and ORCA (Canada’s National
Database of Flyer Distributors) to assemble run lists, insertion orders, route files, CPC management,
bindery, billing summaries, and other customized reporting. It is important to highlight that the
technology platform is exhaustive and agile, thus enabling the customization of clients’
solutions/programs to fit their strategy and objectives. Ciscom management believes that MFD has the
most advanced and performant platform in the market, which provides advantages over other retailers
agencies and competitors with respect to the ability to process detailed big data efficiently.

The main products and services provided by the corporations are:

1) Analysis: The analysis of retail trade areas and client data bases to identify highest value targetable
neighborhoods.

2) Distribution: Design, targeting, strategy and management of programs for the distribution of physical
mail pieces and flyers — also referred to as ‘In-Home Advertising’.

3) Digital: SEM, Search, Display/Programmatic, Contextual, Digital Flyer, Audio and Video

4) Print management: The management of personalized direct mail programs and printing of flyers and
direct mail material.

Analysis:
The Acquired Corporations use robust toolboxes of analytical tools to introduce efficiency and effectiveness to
any retailer’s advertising program. This suite of tools includes:

a. ROl analysis

b. Demographic, consumer spend, media usage and lifestyle preference analysis with proprietary

analytics software.
c. Geographic analysis
d. Targeting of all media, including direct mail, digital, social media, radio, mags, flyers and newspapers.
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Distribution:

The Acquired Corporations have created robust and highly efficient management software program for the
management of the data rich direct mail and distribution programs. Built over the years, they facilitate every
aspect of multi-store, multi-version and multi-channel programs. It allows the corporations to be highly
effective in its internal manpower management.

The software applications integrate the analysis and targeting into each retailer’s store trade area. Current
clients and retailers have between 30 and 600 stores per program, although the software is capable of handling
more. From the analysis results, the corporations create all functions required for an effective distribution and
post distribution management:

Run list for printer

Bindery and Canada Post prep instructions

Shipping manifests

Insertion orders for independent distributors

All Canada Post management paperwork and electronic ordering
Exact billing summaries for invoicing and client reconciliation
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The physical distribution is then subcontracted to independent carriers and Canada Post. Direct mail pieces are
then sent to the carriers and Canada Post nationally or locally as the case may be, with distribution directives.

Print Management

The Acquired Corporations have preferred relationships with large web printers and trade printers. They
negotiated excellent rates and conditions with printers. As such, they manage the print production of flyers or
direct mail for a number of its clients.

Considering PIPEDA, and limitations imposed on emails and such, physical direct mail is still considered an
effective way to market to the public. This is the only way for retailers to ensure 100% penetration of their
message into the market areas they want to target.

Digital, social media and ads on the internet are a key deliverable. While the conversion rates are somewhat
lower, they can be deployed rapidly, adapted and are generally less expenses than print media.

Clients use the Acquired Corporations’ services to better manage their efforts as far as reaching the right
audience with the right message and save by eliminating over-distribution and untargeted areas. Sending glass

windows promotions to condominium residents is a waste of money, thus the need to manage distribution.

Regulatory Matters

The Acquired Corporations’ commercial activities are subject to risks related to product safety laws. Procedures
are in place in order to address such risks. Suppliers are responsible for the quality of their products, and, in
situations of non-compliance, its suppliers would have to assume such risks. Among other things, the
corporations reserve the right to discontinue acceptance of products from any supplier that are not in
compliance with high quality standards. Before agreeing to conduct business with an international supplier,

29



the corporations require a review of their existing procedures. They also inspect a prospective supplier’s
operations and production facilities in order to ensure compliance with standards. In addition, the corporations
conduct random audits to ensure product quality and compliance with its standards.

Customers, Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing are supported by sound client and supplier relationships, a favorable reputation in its
markets, and referrals. Furthermore, management has upheld the corporations’ commitment to providing
clients with the best possible products and services, timely delivery, and superior service at competitive prices.
Under new ownership, additional investments are being contemplated to assess opportunities in order to
accelerate revenue and profit growth by diversifying and expanding its customer base and geographic markets
and looking into additional product offerings.

Competitive Strengths

The Acquired Corporations serve the retail and B2C sectors in Canada, specializing in medium and large-sized
companies, including major recognizable brands/clients. Whoever is closest to the consumer gets the order.
The corporations data-first approach gives an advantage related to consumer data and analytic expertise,
setting us apart from the majority of media buying agencies in Canada. The corporations are in a privileged
position, whereas clients entrust the corporations with their confidential transactional data, plus store and e-
commerce sales information, in order to provide meaningful and actionable insights to drive better sales
performance. The result is an optimized and integrated media strategy that reaches the clients core audience.

Typically, clients have limited marketing capabilities to effectively manage their flyer and direct mail programs
to maximize impact through targeting and analytics. By using the corporations’ platform, on average clients
reduce their program costs. With its latest software development and further automation, the corporations
can onboard a significant number of new clients with limited additional resources and staff.

Analytics, targeting, direct mail analysis and management is an intricate service. While the Acquired
Corporations, with their technology, can onboard clients quickly, typically in the industry, it takes some time
for a flyer and direct mail management partner to setup and establish an effective program tailored to clients’
needs, and keep it optimized month after month. It requires an understanding of the client’s store structures
and program goals. Program changes are usually done within 24 to 72 hours, which is a key factor for retail
direct mail and flyer merchandisers. By comparison, most competitors would require more lead-time to
complete this.

A direct mail and flyer management partner is essentially an extension of the client’s marketing team. Clients
usually do not have the right resources to analyze, design and manage their direct mail program as efficiently
as it does by using the corporations’ platform and IP. With its proprietary technology, the corporations have
been improving the performance of clients’ programs, increasing impact and sales, and reducing costs.

The Acquired Corporations are also continually providing new opportunities for clients in the way of analysis
and execution. The corporations and their clients have multi-level relationships between them — several staff
on each side are involved in the program. This ensures that one staff departure or change on either side does
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not influence the account performance and stickiness.

Clients use a partner because of the deep investment needed to plan and execute a regular direct mail
program. Canada has almost a million postal codes. A partner needs to maintain this database with
concordance to every distributor and their route structures including Canada Post. As part of its IP, the
corporations data bases integrate over 1,200 distributors, with very disparate route structures. This enables
swift deployment of programs anywhere in Canada.

Clients’ procurement efforts and Partner selection

It is important to understand the dynamic in clients’ selection process: what problem are they trying to solve
and what improvements are they looking for. Reasons to change partner are:

Misalignment of objectives

Lack of communication

Poor quality of services

Missed deadlines or deliveries

Cost and pricing

Supplier or partner staff rotation requiring extra efforts and investments of resources

ok wneE

Pricing

Pricing is at market. The staff of the Acquired Corporations have on average several years of services, and as
such, provide corporate memory to clients with higher turnover. Often clients will call on the corporations’
team members to discuss initiatives that took place in prior years and review results. Tracking improvements
and the impact of program changes.

In changing a partner, there are both logistical and human factors. It is far more efficient to work with your
current supplier at solving problems and improving quality versus switching supplier. In changing supplier, an
organization opens itself to risks and uncertainties. Frequently implementations, even with the best of
planning, go sideways, take longer, and do not yield the expected perceived savings.

The established business methodologies are expected to yield growth going forward. However, management
cites several opportunities to accelerate growth trends over the next few years.

Ciscom is working with the Acquired Corporations at quantifying the opportunities through the following:

1. Enhanced Marketing Efforts:

O The corporations currently employ sales and business development staff. Management believes that
with the implementation of an even more comprehensive, strategic marketing plan, and hiring
additional experienced, dedicated salespersons, the corporations could increase their market share,
sales, and profitability.

o Other avenues to help sales growth include enhancing and improving websites, publishing more
product brochures, and creating an effective, targeted social media marketing campaigns.

2. KQuest Analytics: Management believes that growth opportunities exist in marketing KQuest, MFD’s
proprietary analytics software on a wide scale. With additional capital, the MFD could license this
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product to multiple markets throughout Canada and the US, thereby increasing sales and profitability.

3. Geographic Market Expansion: The entire customer base is in Canada, with a concentration in Ontario.
Given additional working capital, there is growth potential to further penetrate existing markets and
expanding to the US.

Typically, clients have limited marketing capabilities to effectively manage their flyer programs to maximize
impact through improved targeting and sophisticated analytics.

Competition

The Acquired Corporations compete within the broad and diverse media agency landscape. However, they are
highly specialized, with significant expertise in consumer data, analytics, print optimization and digital media
integration, plus, development of integrated media strategy. There are a small and select group of competitors
within this space, such as Geomedia, Targeo (division of TC Transcontinental) and Novus. The Acquired
Corporations have grown as leaders in this space, since the business evolved and diversified, focused on the
transition of traditional, lower margin print media revenues, into profitable revenue streams (direct mail,
digital, integrated strategy). This has been a key differentiator, combining expertise in data and analytics to
build optimized, integrated media strategy. At the same time, the main competitors are experiencing
contraction in their client base and revenues, due to a lack of diversification.

Employees

As of April 30,2023, MFD employed 5 full time employees. As managing director of this division, David Mathews
oversees the strategic direction of the business, and its IP and next software development to further improve
products and services. MFD also has a support team handling operations, sales, and finances.

As of April 30, 2023, PMG employed 20 full time employees. As President and Managing Director, David
Mathews oversees the strategic direction of the business, and its IP and next software development to further
improve products and services. PMG also has a support team handling operations, sales, and finances.

Real Property

MFD is headquartered in Markham, Ontario, Canada, a suburb of Toronto. MFD’s previous facility was located
at 55 Alden Road, Suite 207. Effective April 1, 2022, MFD extended its lease for a period of 12 months ending
March 31, 2023. In the process, MFD reduced its square footage from 3,603 to 1,802 square feet. This lease
was not subsequently renewed.

PMG has no office lease. When the prior lease expired in November 2020, in light of the Covid-19 pandemic, it
was decided to move operations 100% virtually.

USE OF AVAILABLE FUNDS

As of December 31, 2021, the Company had $1,006,133 in cash. Following the acquisition of 1880nt, on
September 30, 2022, the Company had $1,708,683 in cash and no investments and a negative working capital
of $2,948,610. On April 30, 2023, the Company had $221,811 in cash and a negative working capital of
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$3,130,753. The negative working capital is related to a one-time purchase price payment of $1,163,521 due
for the acquisition of 1880nt and the revolving operating loan financing obtained from HSBC in the amount of
$2,500,000 used to secure the acquisition of 1880nt that must be presented as a current liability under IFRS.
This $2,500,000 revolving operating loan has no repayment requirement and remains at that level at all times.
The availability of funds and the Company’s ability to raise and generate revenue over the next 12-month period
may vary significantly and will depend on several factors including those set out in “Risk Factors”.

Following the acquisition of 1880nt, the Company’s consolidated operations are profitable and has positive
cash flow. On-going corporate operational expenses are projected at $537,000 in year 1 which will be covered
by management fees charged to its subsidiaries.. The breakdown of such expenses are as follows:

Expenses

Office and GENEral............c.uiiiiiiiii et e e et e s $ 92,000
COMPENSALION...cccciiiiiirtneicrisrerecseeesessseesssassssasesasssssessesasssns sesanesassssanssensssnsssnasssnsssnses senases 300,000
Professional FEEs.............ooouiiiiiiiiiiiee e e e s 100,000
Advertising and PromotioN................occiiiiiiiii e 45 000
TOtAL... e et sttt e e b e e e s e e ebbe e s be e e naree s $ 537,000

During the first four months of 2023, Ciscom raised additional equity in the amount of $228,000. On September
29, 2022, the related party loan and debenture in the total amount of $200,000 were converted to Common
Shares.

The 1880nt Acquisition closed on September 30, 2022. 1880nt is a profitable entity producing an operating
income before income taxes of over $2,000,000 per year. 1880nt has low capital expenditures and no debt. As
such, cash flows closely align to net income (before shareholders’ distributions/dividends). Consequently, on a
consolidated basis, Ciscom has sufficient liquidity and working capital to sustain operations going forward .

Any future potential acquisitions to be undertaken by the Company, including those discussed under the
heading “Business Objectives and Milestones”, above, will need to be undertaken primarily with funds
borrowed from banks or other institutional lenders, issuing of shares or through raising equity financing by
selling Common Shares.

Ciscom has had negative operating cash flows from operations since its inception. Following the closing of the
1880nt acquisition on September 30, 2022, the Company now has positive operating cash flow However,
during the period following the date of this Prospectus, the Company may continue to incur negative cash flow
from operations and may expend a portion of its unallocated cash to fund such negative cash flow.

As of the date of close of the 1880nt Acquisition, the Company earns management fees from its subsidiaries.

DIVIDENDS AND DISTRIBUTIONS
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The Company has not paid dividends since its incorporation. While there are no restrictions in the Company’s
articles of incorporation, bylaws, or pursuant to any agreement or understanding which could prevent the
Company from paying dividends or distributions, the Company has limited cash flow and anticipates using all
available cash resources to fund working capital and grow its business.

As such, the Company has no plans to pay dividends in the foreseeable future. Any decisions to pay dividends
in cash or otherwise in the future will be made by the Board on the basis of the Company’s earnings, financial
requirements and other conditions existing at the time a determination is made.

As private companies, MFD and 1880nt have declared dividends in the past from time to time. There will be
no restrictions in the Company’s constating documents or elsewhere which would prevent the Company from
paying dividends as a result of the MFD Acquisition or following the completion of the 1880nt Acquisition.

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Ciscom’s IFRS reviewed financial statements for March 31, 2023 along with audited financial statements for
December 31, 2022 with 2021 comparatives and December 31, 2020 with 2019 comparatives, with respective
Management Discussions and Analysis (“MD&A”) are attached in Schedules “A” through “V” to this Prospectus.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The MD&A of the financial condition and results of operations of Ciscom, for the year ended December 31,
2022 along with the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are attached as Schedules “F”, “G”, “H”, “I”,
“M”, “P”, “R” and “V” and should be read in conjunction with the IFRS reviewed and audited financial
statements. Reviewed financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023 along with audited financial
statements for the years ended December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, with comparatives, are attached
in the Schedules for reference. The audited financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS.
For a discussion of risks and uncertainties facing MFD, 1880nt and the Company, see “Risk Factors”.

DESCRIPTION OF COMPANY’S SECURITIES
Ciscom Shares
The Company is authorized to issue:
1. Unlimited number of common shares (Common Shares), one vote per share with no par value;
2. Unlimited number of class A Preferred Shares; non-voting, with no stated par value; and,
3. Unlimited number of class B Preferred Shares; non-voting, with no stated par value.

As at December 31, 2022, 51,108,882 (51,563,831 as at April 30, 2023) Common Shares are issued and
outstanding as fully paid and non-assessable. Holders of Common Shares are entitled to one vote per share at
the meetings of the Company’s shareholders, dividends if, as and when declared by the Company’s Board, and
upon liquidation, to share equally in the assets of the Company that are distributable to the Company’s
shareholders.

The Company has never declared or paid dividends. The payments of dividends or distributions in the future
are dependent on the Company’s consolidated earnings, financial conditions and such other factors as the
Company’s Board considers appropriate.
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As at April 30, 2023, the Company had 3,670,000 Ciscom Options, 483,044 Warrants to investors and 500,000

Performance Warrants for the senior management of the Company issued and outstanding.

The following table sets forth the consolidated capitalization of the Company as at December 31, 2022, and as
at April 30, 2023. The table should be read in conjunction with the Company’s financial statements and the

CAPITALIZATION

notes thereto included in the Schedules of this Prospectus.

Authorized | Outstanding as at | Outstanding as at | Outstanding as at

Description of Security Number Decembe[' 31, 2021 December 31, 2022 April 30, 2023
(audited) (audited) (unaudited)

Common Shares Unlimited 40,254,979 51,108,882 51,563,831
Class A Preferred Shares Unlimited Nil Nil Nil
Class B Preferred Shares Unlimited Nil Nil Nil
Loan facility for 1880nt N/A Nil $5,741,667 $5,471,973
Acquisition(1)

Note:

(1) The loan facility consists of a term loan of $3,500,000 (fixed interest rate of 7.695%) amortized over 36 months and a
demand operating loan of $2,500,000 (interest rate of prime plus 1.10%), all secured on the assets of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

OPTIONS AND WARRANTS TO PURCHASE SECURITIES

Stock Options

On July 15, 2020, the Company adopted a Stock Option Plan with the purpose or rewarding key contributors
to the success of the business. As at April 30, 2023, the Company had 3,670,000 Ciscom Options issued and
outstanding of which 3,320,000 were issued to Directors and advisors and 350,000 to employee of MFD and
PMG as summarized below. No Ciscom Options have been exercised to date.

Name # of stock options Exercise Maturity Date
Price

All executive officers and past executive 1,000,000 $0.10 | May 31, 2026
officers of the issuer, as a group (two
individuals)
All directors and past directors of the 1,175,000 $0.10 | May 31, 2026
issuer who are not executive officers, as
a group (six individuals)
Advisors of the Issuer (one individuals) 45,000 $0.10 | May 31, 2026
Advisors of the Issuer (two individuals) 55,000 $0.55 | February 27, 2027
All directors and past directors of the 45,000 $0.55 | September 20, 2027
issuer who are not executive officers, as
a group (one individual)
Advisors of the Issuer (one individual) 75,000 $0.55 | September 20, 2027
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All executive officers and past executive 250,000 $0.55 | September 29, 2027
officers of MFD, as a group (one

individual)
Advisors of the Issuer (one individual) 150,000 $0.55 | February 27, 2028
All directors and past directors of the 150,000 $0.55 | February 27, 2028

issuer who are not executive officers, as
a group (one individual)
All directors and past directors of the 150,000 $0.55 | April 24, 2028
issuer who are not executive officers, as
a group (one individual)

Advisors of the Issuer (one individual) 225,000 $0.55 | September 29, 2027
Employees of MFD 60,000 $0.55 | September 20, 2027
Employees of PMG 290,000 $0.55 | September 29, 2027
Total 3,670,000

Description of the Stock Option Plan and Terms of the Performance Warrants
On July 15, 2020, the Board approved the Stock Option Plan, the principal terms of which are described below.

The purposes of the Stock Option Plan are to enable Ciscom and its affiliates to attract and retain the types of
employees, consultants and directors who will contribute to its long-term success, to provide incentives that
align the interests of employees, consultants and directors with those of securityholders of the Company and
to promote the success of Ciscom’s business.

Participation is limited to employees, consultants and directors providing services to the Company. The number
of Common Shares, the exercise price per Common Share, the vesting period and other terms and conditions
of options granted pursuant to the Stock Option Plan, from time to time, are determined by the Board at the
time of the grant, subject to the defined parameters of the Stock Option Plan and compliance with applicable
laws, including the CSE policies.

Subject to shareholder approval, the maximum aggregate number of Common Shares and Performance
Warrants which may be reserved and set aside for issue is equal to 10% of the issued and outstanding Common
Shares.

The Stock Option Plan is administered by the Board, which has the authority thereunder to delegate its
administration and operation to a committee of directors appointed from time to time by the board of
directors. The aggregate number of Common Shares and Performance Warrants which can be issued (a) to any
one director or officer shall not exceed 5% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares; (b) to any one
consultant shall not exceed 2% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares; and (c) to all participants, in the
aggregate, as compensation for providing Investor Relations Activities (as defined in CSE Policy 1 -
Interpretation and General Provisions) shall not exceed 1% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares.

The exercise period cannot exceed 10 years. Options will terminate on either the date of expiration specified
or on such earlier date as set out in the Stock Option Plan.
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Pursuant to the policies of the CSE, Ciscom may not grant stock options or issue Performance Warrants with
an exercise price lower than the greater of the closing market prices of the Common Shares on (a) the trading
day prior to the date of grant of the stock options or the issuance of Performance Warrants, as applicable; and
(b) the date of grant of the stock options or the issuance of Performance Warrants, as applicable. In addition,
the terms of an option or Performance Warrant may not be amended once issued. If a stock option or
Performance Warrant is cancelled prior to its expiry date, the Company must post notice of the cancellation
and shall not grant new options or issue new Performance Warrants to the same person until 30 days have
elapsed from the date of cancellation.

The Company will amend the terms of its security based compensation arrangements to be fully compliant
with the revised CSE Policies that came into effect on April 3, 2023 and will seek shareholder approval of the
amendments at its next shareholders meeting.

Warrants attached to Common Shares

The Company has raised equity through private placements. The private placement offerings completed since
November 2021, were at $0.45 to $0.55 per share and included one warrant for every ten Common Shares
purchased. The warrants are cashless, have a strike price of $1.00 each entitling the owner to one Common
Share per warrant and mature 3 years from their issuances.

As at April 30, 2023, Ciscom has 483,044 Warrants issued and outstanding to investors. The warrants are
cashless, have a strike price of $1.00 each entitling the owner to one Common Share per warrant and mature
3 years from their issuances. No warrants have been exercised to date. Cashless exercises are completed by
using a portion of the value of the warrants, based on the exercise price and the prevailing market price of the
Common Shares, to exercise some or all of the others.

Performance Warrants

Pursuant to the terms of their respective employment agreements, Michel Pepin and Drew Reid each have the
ability to be issued 1,750,000 Performance Warrants by the Company based on the achievement of certain
business objectives and thresholds, each of which would be exercisable into one Common Share. To date, the
Company has issued 250,000 Performance Warrants to each of Messrs. Pepin and Reid with an exercise price
of $0.25 per Warrant that expire on May 31, 2025.

An additional 1,500,000 Performance Warrants may be issued to each of these individuals based on the
achievement of business objectives and thresholds as outlined below, subject to the provisions as set out under
the heading “Options and Warrants to Purchase Securities- Description of the Stock Option Plan and Terms of
the Performance Warrants”. Any additional Performance Warrants to be issued will have an exercise price set
upon issuance and will also expire on May 31, 2025.

(i) 500,000 Performance Warrants upon the Company achieving $50,000,000 in annual consolidated
sales;
(ii) 500,000 Performance Warrants upon the Company achieving $75,000,000 in annual consolidated
sales;
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(iii) 1,000,000 Performance Warrants upon the Company achieving $100,000,000 in annual consolidated
sales;

(iv) 500,000 Performance Warrants upon the Company closing its first public offering of at least $5,000,000
in equity; and

(v) 500,000 Performance Warrants upon the Company closing of a second public offering of at least
$10,000,000 in equity.

PRIOR SALES

The following table summarizes details of the securities issued by Company during the 12-month period ended
April 30, 2023.

Number of
Date of Description of Issuance Price Securities Total Funds Received
Issuance Security per Security Issued (CAD $)
12-May-22 Common Shares $0.55 10,000 5,500
16-May-22 Common Shares $0.55 10,000 5,500
29-May-22 Common Shares $0.55 20,000 11,000
30-May-22 Common Shares $0.55 40,907 22,500
02-Jun-22 Common Shares $0.55 90,908 50,000
03-Jun-22 Common Shares $0.55 18,181 10,000
06-Jun-22 Common Shares $0.55 57,271 31,500
09-Jun-22 Common Shares $0.55 18,181 10,000
28-Jun-22 Common Shares $0.55 3,636 2,000
13-Jul-22 Common Shares $0.55 85,454 47,000
14-Jul-22 Common Shares $0.55 5,545 3,050
19-Jul-22 Common Shares $0.55 40,000 22,000
22-Jul-22 Common Shares $0.55 27,272 15,000
19-Aug-22 Common Shares $0.55 7,272 4,000
19-Aug-22 Common Shares $0.55 5,454 3,000
25-Aug-22 Common Shares $0.55 272,727 150,000
30-Sep-22 Common Shares $0.55 281,818 155,000
30-Sep-22 Common Shares (1) $0.45 7,633,889 3,435,250
30-Sep-22 Common Shares (2) $0.25 800,000 200,000
4-Oct-22 Common Shares $0.45 222,222 100,000
5-Oct-22 Common Shares $0.55 27,273 15,000
8-Nov-22 Common Shares $0.55 36,363 20,000
24-Jan-23 Common Shares $0.55 181,818 100,000
22-Feb-23 Common Shares $0.55 45,455 25,000
28-Mar-23 Common Shares $0.55 5,455 3,000
28-Mar-23 Common Shares $0.45 222,222 100,000

38




(1) Issuance related to the 1880nt Acquisition

(2) Issuance related to the conversion of debt from a related party
Trading Price and Volume

The Company is not and has never been listed or quoted on any stock exchange.

ESCROWED SECURITIES

The Escrow Agreement provides that the Escrowed Securities are held in escrow pursuant to its terms and may
not be sold, assigned, hypothecated, or transferred within escrow or otherwise dealt with in any manner except
as set out in the Escrow Agreement. In the event of the bankruptcy of an escrow shareholder, the Escrowed
Securities held by such escrow shareholder may be transferred to the trustees in the bankruptcy or such person
legally entitled to the escrowed shares which shares will remain in escrow subject to the Escrow Agreement.
In the event of the death of an escrow shareholder, the Escrowed Securities held by the escrow shareholder
will be released from escrow as permitted by the Escrow Agreement. As of April 30, 2023, it is anticipated that
the Escrowed Securities will be held as follows:

Number of securities to be held
in escrow Percentage

Name of Shareholder Designation of Class of g

Class¥
Whittaker Inc., Common Shares 9,622,333 Common Shares 18.7%
Markham, Ontario —
directly owned by
Paul Gaynor
Paul Gaynor, Oro- Common Shares 1,184,000 Common Shares 2.3%
Medonte, Ontario
Paul Gaynor, Oro- Ciscom Options 250,000 Ciscom Options 6.8%
Medonte, Ontario
David Mathews, Common Shares 3,816,945 Common Shares 7.4%
Toronto, Ontario
Nashly Mathews, Common Shares 3,816,945 Common Shares 7.4%
Toronto, Ontario
Shaun Power, Common Shares 750,000 Common Shares 1.5%
Burlington, Ontario
Shaun Power, Ciscom Options 200,000 Ciscom Options 5.5%
Burlington, Ontario
Josh Howard, London, Common Shares 725,000 Common Shares 1.4%
Ontario
Josh Howard, London, Ciscom Options 175,000 Ciscom Options 4.8%
Ontario
Julia Robinson, Common Shares 900,000 Common Shares 1.8%
Toronto, Ontario
Julia Robinson, Ciscom Options 370,000 Ciscom Options 10.1%
Toronto, Ontario
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Number of securities to be held
LG Percentage
Name of Shareholder Designation of Class of .
Class¥
Estate of Peter Common Shares 3,295,000 Common Shares 6.4%
McDonald, Oakville,
Ontario
Eric Klein, Toronto, Ciscom Options 375,000 Ciscom Options 10.2
Ontario
Mark Irwin, Common Shares 900,000 Common Shares 1.8%
Mississauga, Ontario
Lucie Cousineau, Common Shares 200,000 Common Shares 0.4%
Brantford, Ontario
Alkaneid Corp. — Common Shares 5,050,000 Common Shares 9.8%
directly owned by
Drew Reid : :
Toronto, Ontario Ciscom Options 500,000 Ciscom Options 13.6%
Performance 250,000 Performance Warrants 50%
Warrants
Michel Pepin, Common Shares 3,300,000 Common Shares 6.4%
Brantford, Ontario
Ciscom Options 500,000 Ciscom Options 13.6%
Performance 250,000 Performance Warrants 50%
Warrants

(1)

Warrants issued as of April 30, 2023.

(2)

Acquisition and the 1880nt Earn-Out in 2022 and 2023.

Based on 51,563,831 Common Shares issued and outstanding, 3,670,000 Ciscom Options and 500,000 Performance

The Company may issue up to 2,000,000 Common Shares to the selling shareholders of 1880nt in relation to the 1880nt

The Ciscom Securities listed above will be held in escrow by TSX Trust Company and such securities shall be
released in accordance with the following timeline:

Release Dates

Percentage of Total Escrowed
Securities to be Released

Cumulative
Percentage of Total
Escrowed Securities to

the CSE

securities

be Released
Date of listing on the CSE 10% 10%
6 months following the date of listing on the 1/6 of the remaining escrowed 259%
CSE securities ?
12 months following the date of listing on 1/5 of the remaining escrowed
o 40%
the CSE securities
18 months following the date of listing on 1/4 of the remaining escrowed 559%
(o)
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Release Dates Percentage of Total Escrowed Cumulative
Securities to be Released Percentage of Total
Escrowed Securities to
be Released
24 months following the date of listing on 1/3 of the remaining escrowed
o 70%
the CSE securities
30 months following the date of listing on 1/2 of the remaining escrowed
o 85%
the CSE securities
36 months following the date of listing on The remaining escrowed
g 100%
the CSE securities

PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS

The following table sets out the name of each person who, to the knowledge of the Company, directly or
indirectly, owns of record or beneficially, or exercises control or direction over more than 10% of the shares of
the Company as at April 30, 2023.

Name of Shareholder Occupation Designation of Class Number of Percentagle of
securities held Class™

F’adl{| Ga?’no}:' direhctly and Retired Former Common Shares 10,806,333 21.0%
indirectly throug President of MFD
\Whittaker Inc., Oro- resiaento
Medonte, Ontario Ciscom Options 250,000 6.8%
David Mathews, Toronto, President and
Ontario : . 0

@ Managing Director|  common Shares 7,633,889 14.8%

of PMG
Notes.

(1) Based on 51,563,831 Common Shares issued and outstanding and 3,670,000 Ciscom Options issued as at April 30, 2023.
(2) Includes 3,816,944 Common Shares owned by Mr. Mathews’ spouse.

DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Below is a brief description of each director and member of management of the Company, including their
names, positions, and responsibilities with the Company, relevant educational background, principal
occupations or employment during the five years preceding the date of this Prospectus and experience in the
Company’s industry. As of the date of this Prospectus, none of the directors or officers have signed non-
compete or nondisclosure agreements with the Company — see “Conflicts of Interest” below. None of the
directors and officers of the Company are compensated in cash. As at April 30, 2023, appointees and stock
ownership are the following:

Directors
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Name City of Board Board Principal Board Ciscom Ciscom
residence | position status Occupation(s) appointment Shares Options
@ During Past Five
Years
Drew Toronto, Chairman Non- Executive  Chairman | June 29, 2020 5,050,000(2) 500,000
Reid (54 | ON Independent | and CEO, Ciscom along with
years Corp.; prior thereto, 250,000
old) operations manager, Performance
DLT Resolution Inc. Warrants
(February 2017-
March  2020) and
operations consultant,
Atlantic Power and
Infrastructure  Corp.
(January 2016- March
2020)
Michel Brantford, | Corporate Non- President and CFO, | Nov. 10, 2020 3,300,000 500,000
Pepin ON Secretary Independent | Ciscom Corp.; CFO and along with
(60 years COO, Anova Fertility 250,000
old) and Reproductive Performance
Health; CFO, The Warrants
Minacs Group
Paul Oro- Director Non- President of Market | Sept1, 2021 10,806,333(3) 250,000
Gaynor Medonte, and Audit | Independent | Focus Direct (now
(76 years | ON Committee retired)
old)
David Toronto, Director Non- President and | April 24, 2023 7,633,889(a) Nil
Mathews | ON Independent | Managing Director of
(55 years Prospect Media Group
old)
Eric Klein | Toronto, Director Independent | President, Klein Aug. 16, 2021 Nil 375,000
(62 years | ON and Audit Advisory Services Inc.;
old) committee EVP Corporate
Development, Dundee
Corporation
Shaun Burlington, | Director, Independent | Tax Consultant, | Dec. 3, 2021 750,000 200,000
Power ON Chair Audit BDFP+A CPA, LLP;
(52 years Committee Partner at BDO
old) Canada LLP
Julia Toronto, Director Independent | Vice President of | Dec. 3, 2021 900,000 370,000
Robinson | ON World Wave Events
(48 years
old)
Josh London, Director Independent | Managing Partner & | Dec. 3,2021 725,000 175,000
Howard ON Real Estate Sales
(51 years Representative of
old) Forest Hill Real Estate
Notes:

(1) The information as to municipality of residence, principal occupation, securities beneficially owned or over which a director
or officer exercises control or direction has been furnished by the respective persons individually.
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(2) Share are owned indirectly through Alkaneid Corp.
(3) Shares are owned directly and indirectly through Whittaker Inc.
(4) 50% of the shares are owned by Mr. Mathews’ spouse.

The following is a summary of the relevant experience of the Company’s directors and executive officers:

Drew Reid: As Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Reid oversees the Board’s activities,
stakeholders’ relations, liaise with investors and financial institutions and seek acquisition targets on behalf of
the Company. Mr. Reid of Toronto, Ontario devotes 100% of his time to the business of the Company and
was appointed to the Board on June 29, 2020.

Mr. Reid has 34 years’ experience in the finance industry, private equity, mergers and acquisitions, publicly traded
and privately-owned companies. Positions held have ranged from commodities trade desks to bond, equities and
currency trading with several banks and institutions, including Bank of Tokyo (from 1990 to 1992), CIBC Wood
Gundy (1988-1990), and Burns Fry (from 1987 to 1988). Mr. Reid has been instrumental with developing
profitable businesses, rebuilding troubled companies, advancing businesses to public markets, compliance,
government outreach architectural hardware design teams and managing legal and financial matters.

P. Michel Pepin, CPA, CA.: As President, Corporate Secretary and Chief Financial Officer, Mr. Pepin is
responsible for the finances of the Company and for ensuring compliance with regulatory matters, including
the filing by the Company on a timely basis of its financial statements and related documents and will assist
the Chairman and CEO in his duties and will be responsible for overseeing the day-to-day management and
performance of the Company, M&A, set performance management metrics and liaise with the subsidiaries.
Mr. Michel Pepin of Brantford, Ontario devotes 100% of his time to the business of the Company and was
appointed to the Board on November 10, 2020.

Mr. Pepin has led teams in domestic and global organizations and has worked in publicly traded, private equity
and family-owned businesses, and traveled the world working with local management to re-enforce culture
and improve performance. He has also led and participated in a number of new ventures, including M&A deals
on both the buy and sell side and interacted with capital markets. He has a B.Comm. from UQAM and became
a Chartered Accountant (now CPA) in 1987. Recent work experience includes:

e 2020 to present: President & CFO, Director, Ciscom Corp.

e 2018 -2020: CFO & COO Anova Fertility.

e 2016 —2018: General business consulting technology and real estate.

e 2015-2016: CFO (global), GLT and Board member (22,000 employees) Minacs Group (now Concentrix).

e 2013 -2015:CFO, SLT and Board member at Millennium 1 Solutions. Carve out from D&H with 3 divisions
and 1,400 employees.

Eric Klein, CPA, CA, CBV, ICD.D: Mr. Klein of Toronto, Ontario is a Director, a Chartered Professional Accountant,
Chartered Business Valuator and member of the Institute of Corporate Directors. Mr. Klein has over 35 years of
both professional and corporate management experience. He focuses on mergers, acquisitions, divestitures,
financings and strategic advisory as well as joint ventures for primarily mid-sized Canadian corporations. His
experience as both a corporate executive and an advisor lead to unique and holistic results. As a member of the
Institute of Corporate Directors, he serves on both public and private company boards.

Currently, Mr. Klein is the President of Klein Advisory Services Inc. Prior to that he held the position of Executive
Vice President, Corporate Development of Dundee Corporation from 2016 to 2018. From 1992 to 2016, Mr. Klein
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served as the lead partner of Klein Farber Corporate Finance Inc., a financial services advisory firm that is a
member of the Farber Financial Group. Over the years, he has served as an advisor, executive and independent
board member to various public and private corporations, quasi-government organizations, private individuals
and family groups.

Mr. Klein holds a graduate diploma in Public Accounting and a B.Comm. degree from McGill University in
Montreal. He was appointed to the Board on August 16, 2021.

Paul Gaynor: Mr. Paul Gaynor of Oro-Medonte, Ontario was the founder of MFD that started operations in
1991 and remain its President. Throughout the years, Mr. Gaynor has been an entrepreneur and a chair and
board member of several trade associations pushing for the development and advancement of technology in
the industry. He was appointed to the Board on September 1, 2021.

MFD is focused on the retail industry with a full-service agency serving clients across Canada and servicing
large, multi-location retail clients. MFD provides efficient and effective in-home advertising, across all
platforms, including digital, social media and physical documents.

Shaun Power, CPA, CA: Mr. Shaun Power of Burlington, Ontario was appointed to the Board on December 3,
2021, is an independent Director and the Chair of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Power practice includes small to large sized organizations. He advises in the areas of finance, taxation and
strategic planning, and has substantive experience in corporate reorganizations and innovative financings. He
has worked in all sectors of the economy, including retail, manufacturing, consumer products, automotive, and
professional services. Mr. Power is a frequent speaker at renown tax conferences in addition to writing and
course material. He has had several Board appointments including Momentum Credit Union, 2018 — Present
as Audit and Finance Committee Chair, fund raising Boars/committee at the new facilities of Joseph Brant
Hospital (560 million capital raise) and is currently on the Board of the Ronald MacDonald House in Hamilton.
He has a BA from the University of Western Ontario abd graduated from the Accounting Program at the Wilfred
Laurier University and became a Chartered Professional Accountant in 1994. Has also taken several specialty
courses in corporate taxes. His recent work experience includes:

e 2020 to present: Partner at BDFP Chartered Accountants LLP.
e 2013 -2020: Partner at BDO Canada LLP.

Julia Robinson: Mrs. Julia Robinson of Toronto, Ontario was appointed to the Board on December 3, 2021 as
an independent director. Mrs. Robinson is a Vice-President of World Wave Events the Global experts in the
design, fabrication and execution of brand environments and exhibits for trade expositions, in-store displays
and special event, including the opening and closing ceremonies of the Olympic Games and FIFA World Cup
Championship. She is actively involved in all aspects of daily operations supporting such clients as Mitsubishi
Motors, Suzuki Canada and Nike. World Wave Events has been involved in executing such events as FIFA World
Cup, The Ryder Cup and The Open. Prior to joining World Wave Events full time, Julia had a career in the
Pharmaceutical and Medical Device industry as an independent sales representative for companies such as
Valeant and Medexus Pharmaceuticals. Julia graduated from the University of Windsor in 1997 with an honors
degree in Kinesiology.

Josh Howard: Mr. Howard of London, Ontario was appointed to the Board on December 3, 2021 as an
independent Director. Mr. Howard has been practicing real estate since 2014. He is an active agent in Toronto,
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and an owner and the managing partner of a branch office in London for Forest Hill Real Estate. Prior thereto,
he was President of Innovatech Display Technologies and a business consultant. Mr. Howard has been a board
member of a number of NGOs and has been recognized by the Governor General of Canada and the Business
Development Bank for his work in the community and abroad.

David Mathews: Mr. Mathews is the President and Managing Director of PMG. As a senior executive, Dave
will be leading the operations, performance and growth strategy of the advertising and marketing technology
segment within Ciscom. Dave has a long tenure of building, combining and developing the agency business
since he founded Stratafly, in partnership with Prospect Media in 2006. Then merging the two agencies in
2014 as the new Prospect Media Group and taking sole ownership of PMG in 2019. He is based in Toronto.

He brings over 25 years as a leader in the marketing industry, leading growth strategy initiatives across
multiple media and agency roles. He led the transformation of PMG into a retail focused, data-driven,
integrated media agency— from print to digital to omni-channel. His passion is to deliver actionable consumer
insights, combined with integrated media strategy to create successful client experiences focused on
performance.

Dave has served on multiple boards within the marketing industry such as the RAC Board, the RCC Marketing
Committee, as well as for the charitable organization Youth Without Shelter. He is the founding partner of
Cover Me Urban in 2010, an annual fundraising event that supports YWS, raising over significant funding for
the shelter since inception. He has a B.Sc. from UofT, leveraging his experience as the Advertising Director for
the campus radio station, as his foray into Marketing.

Recent work experience includes:

e 2019 to present: President & Managing Director, Prospect Media Group Ltd.

e 2014 -2018: Managing Director/Partner, Prospect Media Group Ltd.

e 2006 — 2014 — Managing Director/Partner, Stratafly

e 2014 -2017 — Board Member, Youth Without Shelter

e 2007 — 2016 — Board Member, RAC Canada (Retail & Advertising Canada)

e 2007 — Present — RCC (Retail Council of Canada) Marketing Advisory Committee

e 1996 — 2006 — Sr. National Account Manager, Netmedia (div. of Quebecor)

e 1989 — 1996 — Specialty Distribution Manager, Metroland (div. of Torstar Corporation)

Mr. Mathews was appointed to the Board on April 24, 2023.
Term of Office of Directors

The term of office of the directors expires annually at the time of the Company’s annual general meeting of
shareholders. The term of office of the executive officers expires at the discretion of the Board.

Aggregate Ownership of Common Shares

As at April 30, 2023, to the best of the Company’s knowledge, the directors and executive officers of the
Company owned, as a group, or exercised control or direction over, directly or indirectly, approximately
29,095,222 or 56.4% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares of the Company (57% fully diluted).

Conflicts of interest
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Potential conflicts of interest may result from the fact that two of the directors of the Company are also
senior executives of the Company. Messrs. Drew Reid and Michel Pepin are respectively the Chairman & CEO
and the President & CFO of the Company. Certain of the directors and officers of the Company are also
directors, officers or shareholders of other companies. Such associations may give rise to conflicts of interest
from time to time. See “Risk factors — Directors and Executive Officers — Conflicts of Interest”.

Conflicts of interest may arise which could influence these individuals in generally acting on behalf of the
Company. Pursuant to the OBCA, directors will be required to act honestly and in good faith with a view to the
best interests of the Company. As required under the OBCA: (a) a director or senior officer who holds any office
or possesses any property, right or interest that could result, directly or indirectly, in the creation of a duty or
interest that materially conflicts with that individual’s duty or interest as a director or senior officer of the
Company, must promptly disclose the nature and extent of that conflict; and (b) a director who holds a
disclosable interest (as that term is used in the OBCA) in a contract or transaction into which the Company has
entered or proposes to enter may generally not vote on any directors’ resolution to approve the contract or
transaction.

Cease Trade Orders, Bankruptcies, Penalties or Sanctions

Other than as disclosed below, none of the foregoing directors or executive officers of the Company is, or
within the last ten years has been, a director, chief executive officer or chief financial officer of any company
that, while that person was acting in that capacity:

(i) was the subject of a cease trade or similar order, or an order that denied such company access
to any exemption under applicable securities legislation for a period of more than 30 consecutive
days; or

(i) was subject to an event that resulted, after the director or executive officer ceased to be a
director, chief executive officer or chief financial officer, in such company becoming the subject
of a cease trade or similar order, or an order that denied such company access to any exemption
under applicable securities legislation for a period of more than 30 consecutive days.

None of the foregoing directors or executive officers of the Company, nor any shareholder holding a
sufficient number of securities of the Company to materially affect its control:

a. is, or within the last ten years has been, a director or executive officer of any company that, while
that person was acting in that capacity, or within a year of that person ceasing to act in that capacity,
became bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or was
subject to orinstituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver,
receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold its assets;

b. has, within the last ten years, become bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to
bankruptcy or insolvency or become subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or
compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold his assets;

c. has been subject to any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating to securities legislation or

by a securities regulatory authority or has entered into a settlement agreement with a securities’
regulatory authority; or
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d. has been subject to any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body that would
likely be considered important to a reasonable investor making an investment decision.

In January 1994, Drew Reid pleaded guilty to a charge of false pretenses over $1,000 after he admitted to the
fraudulent transfer of title of a family residential property, and was sentenced to one year of probation. In June
1996, Mr. Reid pleaded guilty, and was sentenced to six sixty-day concurrent sentences, to charges of fraud
and theft of telecommunication services after he provided false information to secure lease financing for two
business cell phones. In October 1998, Mr. Reid pleaded guilty, and was sentenced to 3 months incarceration
and two years’ probation and ordered to pay approximately $10,500 in restitution, to charges of fraud and
forgery 0N the misappropriation of insurance proceeds and the fraudulent transfer of funds earmarked for his
insurance company as the co-payee. In March 2000, Mr. Reid pleaded guilty to charges of false pretenses and
was sentenced to 9 months in jail after securing a vehicle lease with false income details.

Bankruptcies

No directors or executive officers of the Company has, within the 10 years prior to the date of this Prospectus,
become bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject
to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or comprise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager
or trustee appointed to hold its assets, been a director or executive officer of any company, that, while that
person was acting in that capacity, or within a year of that person ceasing to act in that capacity, became
bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or
instituted any proceedings, arrangement or comprise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or
trustee appointed to hold its assets.

Penalties or Sanctions

No directors or executive officers of the Company or shareholder holding sufficient securities of the Company
to affect materially the control of the Company has:

e been subject to any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating to securities legislation or by a
securities regulatory authority or has entered into a settlement agreement with a securities’ regulatory
authority; or

e been subject to any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body that would likely
be considered important to a reasonable investor making an investment decision.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Director and Named Executive Officer Compensation, Excluding Compensation Securities
The following table contains information about the non-securities compensation to, or earned by, individuals

who were, as at the financial years ended December 31, 2020, December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2022
Directors or NEOs of the Company.
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Table of compensation excluding compensation by securities

Value of all
Committee Value of other Total
Name and or meeting Perquisites Compensation Compensation
Position Period Salary ($) | Bonus (S) fees ($) (S) (S) (S)
Drew Reid, Dec. 31, S0 S0 S0 S0 S0 S0
Ciscom Chairman 2020
& CEO
Dec. 31, $0 $0 $0 $0 $100,000(1) $100,000
2021
Dec. 31,
o $65,000 | $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $95,000
2022
Michel Pepin, Dec. 31, SO SO SO S0 S0 S0
Ciscom President 2020
& CFO
Dec. 31, $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
2021
Dec. 31
e 5L | 465000 | $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $95,000
2022
Perter Clausi, Dec. 31, S0 S0 S0 S0 S0 S0
Director 2020
Dec. 31, $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
2021
Dec. 31,
2022 S0 S0 S0 S0 S0 S0
David Mathews, Dec. 31, $67,750 $57,607 S0 SO $2,400 $127,757
President and 2022
Managing
Director of PMG
Eric Klein, Dec. 31, o) o) o) SO S0 S0
Director 2020
Dec. 31, $0 50 $0 S0 S0 S0
2021
Dec. 31,
2022 S0 S0 S0 S0 S0 S0
Paul Gaynor, Dec. 31, $100,000 S0 S0 S0 S0 S0
President of MFD 2020
Dec. 31, $65,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
2021
Dec. 21,
2022 S0 S0 S0 S0 S0 S0
Shaun Power, Dec. 31, S0 S0 S0 S0 S0 S0
Director 2020
Dec. 31, 50 50 $0 $0 S0 $0
2021
Dec. 31,
2022 S0 S0 S0 S0 S0 S0

48




Julia Robinson, Dec. 31, SO SO SO SO SO SO
Director 2020
Dec. 31, 50 $0 $0 $0 S0 $0
2021
Josh Howard, Dec. 31, SO SO SO SO S0 S0
Director 2020
Dec. 31, $0 50 $0 $0 $0 $0
2021
Dec. 31,
2022 50 50 $0 $0 $0 $0

(1) The compensation was paid to Mr. Reid’s holding company for services rendered since inception
of the Company.

Stock Options and Other Compensation Securities

The following table contains information about the securities compensation to, or earned by, individuals who
were Directors or NEOs of the Company as at April 30, 2023.

Compensation Securities

Name and Type of Number of Date of Issue, Closing price Closing price Expiry
position compensation compensation issue or conversion or of security or of security or Date
security securities, number grant exercise price underlying underlying
of underlying (S) security on security at
securities, and date of grant year end ($)
percentage of class (S)
Drew Reid, Common Shares 2,500,000 Nov. 10, N/A $0.10 $0.55 N/A
Ciscom 2020
Executive -
Chairman & Stock Options 500,000 Nov. 10, $0.10 $0.10 $0.55 May 31,
CEO 2020 2026
Michel Pepin, Common Shares 2,125,000 Nov. 10, N/A $0.10 $0.55 N/A
Ciscom 2020
President, -
CFO and Stock OpthﬂS 500’000 Nov. 10, $010 5010 5055 May 31,
Corporate 2020 2026
Secretary
Eric Klein, Stock Options 225,000 July 15, $0.25 $0.25 $0.55 May 31,
Director 2021 2026
Stock Options 150,000 February $0.55 $0.55 $0.55 February
28,2023 27,2028
Paul Gaynor, Stock Options 250,000 Sep. 30, $0.55 $0.55 $0.55 Sep. 29,
President of 2022 2027
MFD
Shaun Power, Common Shares 250,000 Nov. 10, N/A $0.10 $0.55 N/A
Director 2020
Stock Options 200,000 Nov. 10, $0.10 $0.10 $0.55 May 31,
2020 2026
Julia Stock Options 175,000 Nov. 10, $0.10 $0.10 $0.55 May 31,
Robinson, 2020 2026
Director

49




Stock Options 45,000 Sep. 21, $0.55 $0.55 $0.55 Sep. 20,
2022 2027
Stock Options 150,000 April 24, $0.55 $0.55 $0.55
2023 April 23,
2028
Josh Howard, Stock Options 175,000 Nov. 10, $0.10 $0.10 $0.55 May 31,
Director 2020 2026
David Common Shares 3,816,495 Sep. 30, $0.45 $0.55 $0.55 N/A
Mathews, 2022
President
PMG

Employment, Consulting and Management Agreements

The Company has two employment agreements. Terms are the following:

1. Drew Reid:

a. Position: Executive Chairman & CEO;

b. Effective date: November 10, 2020;

c. Term: No limit;

d. Compensation: Base salary of $60,000 per year, determined by the Board, starting March 1, 2022
and increased to $120,000 per year starting October 1, 2022. No cash compensation was paid
before March 1, 2022;

e. Bonus: 100% of base salary based on achievement of annual targets. A transaction bonus of
$30,000 was paid following the closing of the 1880nt Acquisition;

f. Stock Options: to be determined by the Board from time to time;

g. Performance Warrants: ability to earn up to 1,750,000 Performance Warrants which may be
granted based of business threshold achievements; and

h. Termination not for cause: Severance of 24 months plus bonus and benefits. Minimum of

$500,000.

2. Michel Pepin:

a.

b.
c.
d

Position: President & CFO;

Effective date: November 10, 2020;

Term: No limit;

Compensation: Base salary of $60,000 per year, determined by the Board, starting March 1, 2022
and increased to $120,000 per year starting October 1, 2022. No cash compensation was paid
before March 1, 2022;

Bonus: 100% of base salary based on achievement of annual targets. A transaction bonus of
$30,000 was paid following the closing of the 1880nt Acquisition;

Stock Options: to be determined by the Board from time to time;

Performance Warrants: ability to earn up to 1,750,000 Performance Warrants which may be
granted based of business threshold achievements; and

Termination not for cause: Severance of 24 months plus bonus and benefits. Minimum of
$500,000.

The Company does not have any consulting or management agreements.

Oversight and Description of Director and NEO Compensation
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Currently the Company does not have a compensation committee at this time. The compensation for the NEOs
is set by the independent Directors and is to be reviewed periodically.

No compensation plans have yet been entertained for Directors.
Pension Plan Benefits

Currently the Company does not have a pension plan.

INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
Aggregate Indebtedness

Save for Mr. Reid as further described below, no director or officer of the Company, or any associate or affiliate
of such person is or has ever been indebted to the Company; nor has any such person’s indebtedness to any
other entity been the subject of a guarantee, support agreement, letter of credit or similar arrangement or
understanding provided by the Company.

On February 24, 2022, the Company advanced $180,000 to Mr. Reid in the form of a promissory note. The
promissory note carries interest at 6.25% per year, matures one year after its issuance and his guaranteed by
500,000 Common Shares pledged by Mr. Reid. The maturity date on this note was subsequently extended to
December 31, 2023.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company currently has an Audit Committee in place. The following is a description of the mandate of the
Audit Committee, and the text of the audit committee charter is included in its entirety as Schedule “W” to
this Prospectus.

The Audit Committee oversees the Company’s financial reporting process and internal controls, and consults
with management, the Company’s accounting department and its independent auditors on matters related
to the Company’s annual audit and internal controls, published financial statements, accounting principles
and auditing procedures. The Audit Committee also reviews management’s evaluation of the auditors’
independence and submits to the Ciscom Board its recommendations on the appointment of auditors.

Composition of the Audit Committee

The members of the Audit Committee are Shaun Power (Chair), Eric Klein and Paul Gaynor. Under NI 52-110,
a director of an audit committee is “independent” if he or she has no direct or indirect material relationship
with the issuer, that is, a relationship which could, in the view of the Board, reasonably be expected to
interfere with the exercise of the member’s independent judgment. For the purpose of assessing the
independence of a member of an audit committee, NI 52-110 further provides that an individual will be
deemed to have a material relationship with an issuer if he or she accepts, directly or indirectly, any
consulting, advisory or other compensatory fee from the issuer, other than as remuneration for acting in his
or her capacity as a member or as part-time chair or vice-chair of the board of directors of the issuer or
any committee thereof. For this purpose, the indirect acceptance by an individual of any consulting, advisory
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or other compensatory fee includes the acceptance of a fee by an entity in which such individual is a partner,
and which provides accounting, consulting, legal, investment banking or financial advisory services to the
issuer.

Based on the foregoing, the Board has determined that Shaun Power and Eric Klein are independent members
of the Company’s Audit Committee, and that Paul Gaynor is not independent based on his previous role as
President of MFD.

All members of the Audit Committee are financially literate in that they have the ability to read and
understand a set of financial statements that are of the same breadth and level of complexity of accounting
issues as can be reasonably expected to be raised by the Company’s financial statements. See “Directors
and Executive Officers” above for the relevant education and experience of the Audit Committee members.

Audit Committee Oversight

At no time since the commencement of the Company’s most recently completed financial year has there been
a recommendation of the Audit Committee to nominate or compensate an external auditor which was not
adopted by the Board.

Reliance on Certain Exemptions

The Company is relying on the exemption set out in section 6.1 of NI 52-110 with respect to compliance
with the requirements of Part 3 (Composition of the Audit Committee) and Part 5 (Reporting Obligations)
of NI152-110.

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures for Non-Audit Services

The Audit Committee is responsible for pre-approving all non-audit services to be provided by the external
auditor to the Company other than de minimis non-audit services referred to in section 2.4 of NI 52-110.
In particular, the chairman of the Audit Committee is authorized to approve any non-audit services.
Furthermore, the Audit Committee is required to evaluate the independence and objectivity of the external
auditors. The Audit Committee also has the authority to engage independent legal counsel and other advisors
as it determines necessary to carry out its duties and responsibilities.

External Auditor Service Fees

The following table discloses the fees billed to the Company by its external auditor since incorporation.

Financial Year Audit Related
Ending Audit Fees Fees Tax Fees All Other Fees
Dec. 31, 2020 $70,000 Nil $2,000 S0
Dec. 31, 2021 $104,300 Nil $2,300 SO
Dec. 31. 2022 $90,570 Nil $5,000 SO

STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

National Policy 58-201 of the Canadian Securities Administrators sets out a series of guidelines for
effective corporate governance (the “Guidelines”). The Guidelines address matters such as the constitution
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and independence of corporate boards, the functions to be performed by boards and their committees and
the effectiveness and education of board members. NP 58-201 requires the disclosure by each listed
corporation of its approach to corporate governance with reference to the Guidelines as it is recognized that
the unique characteristics of individual corporations will result in varying degrees of compliance.

The following is a description of the Ciscom’s approach to corporate governance in relation to the Guidelines.

The Board of Directors

NP 58-201 defines an “independent director” as a director who has no direct or indirect material relationship
with the issuer. A “material relationship” is in turn defined as a relationship which could, in the view of the
board of directors, be reasonably expected to interfere with such member’s independent judgment.
Ciscom’s Board is currently comprised of eight (8) members.

As at the date of this prospectus, Eric Klein, Shaun Power, Julia Robinson, and Josh Howard are considered
independent directors since they are each independent of management and free from any material
relationship with the Company within the meaning of NP 58-201.

Messrs. Drew Reid, Michel Pepin, David Mathews and Paul Gaynor are not considered to be independent
directors within the meaning of NP 58-201 by virtue of their roles as executive officers of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The Board believes that it functions independently of management. To enhance its ability to act independently
of management, the Board may in the future meet in the absence of members of management or may excuse
such persons from all or a portion of any meeting where a potential conflict of interest arises or where
otherwise appropriate.

Other Reporting Issuer Experience

The following table sets out the proposed directors, executive officers and Promoters of Ciscom that are, or
have been within the last five years, directors, executive officers or Promoters of other issuers that are or
were reporting issuers in any Canadian jurisdiction:

Name Name of Reporting Name of Exchange | Position From To
Issuer or
Market (if
applicable)
Shaun Power Element Nutritional Sciences CSE CFO, Director| May 26, 2021 Present
INV Metal TSX Director January 2008 July 2021
Ramm Pharmaceutical CSE Director October 2020 Present
Eric Klein
Braingrid Ltd CSE Director December 2018 April 2020
Dundee Corporation TSE Officer May 2016 January 2018
12 Exploration Inc. CSE Officer & March 2019 June 2020
Director
79 North Inc. CSE Director May 2022 Present

Orientation and Continuing Education
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The Board briefs all new directors with respect to the policies of the Board and other relevant corporate and
business information. The Board does not provide any continuing education.

Ethical Business Conduct

The Board has found that the fiduciary duties placed on individual directors by the Company’s governing
corporate legislation and the common law, and the restrictions placed by applicable corporate legislationon
an individual director’s participation in decisions of the Board in which the director has an interest have been
sufficient to ensure that the Board operates independently of management and in the best interests of the
Company. In addition, the Board adopted a code of business conduct and ethics on October 13, 2022. This
code provides a general statement of the Company’s expectations regarding the ethical standards that each
director, officer and employee and any consultants or other external parties in a similar role with the Company
should adhere to while acting on behalf of the Company. This involves adherence to principles such as honest
and ethical conduct, including the ethical handling of actual or apparent conflicts of interest between personal
and professional relationships; the full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable disclosure in the public
communications and filings of the Corporation; compliance with applicable governmental laws, rules and
regulations; and the accountability by all of the Company’s directors, officers and employees for adherence to
this code.

Please refer to Schedule “X” for the complete version of the Company’s code of business conduct and ethics.
Nomination of Directors

The Company does not have a formal process or committee for proposing new nominees for election to the
Board. The nominees proposed are generally the result of recruitment efforts by the members of the Board,
including both formal and informal discussions among the members of the Board.

Compensation

The Board has not created or appointed a compensation committee given the Company’s current size and
stage of development. All tasks related to developing and monitoring the Company’s approach to the
compensation of the NEOs and directors are performed by the members of the Board. The compensation of
the NEOs, directors and the Company’s employees or consultants, if any, is reviewed, recommended and
approved by the Board without reference to any specific formula or criteria.

Other Board Committees

The Board has no other committees other than the Audit Committee.

Assessments

The Board regularly monitors the adequacy of information given to directors, communications between the
Board and management and the strategic direction and processes of the Board and its committee(s).

Insider Trading Policy
The board has adopted an Insider Trading Policy. The purpose of this policy is to assist directors, officers and
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employees of Ciscom in complying with the prohibitions under applicable securities laws against insider
trading, tipping and recommending trades in securities of the Company and other issuers in certain
circumstances.

Please refer to Schedule “Y” for the complete version of the Insider Trading Policy.
RISK FACTORS

An investment in the Common Shares, in the event that the Common Shares are offered for sale at some time
in the future or purchased on a stock exchange such as the CSE, should be considered highly speculative due
to the nature of the Company’s business and the present stage of development. An investment in the Common
Shares should only be made by knowledgeable and sophisticated investors who are willing to risk and can
afford the loss of their entire investment. Potential investors should consult with their professional advisors
to assess an investment in the Company. In evaluating the Company and its business, investors should
carefully consider, in additionto other information contained in this Prospectus, the risk factors below. These
risk factors are not a definitive list of all risk factors associated with an investment in the Company or in
connection with its operations and other risks and uncertainties affecting the Company’s business could
potentially arise or become material in the future.

Insufficient Capital

Since the acquisition of MFD on September 1, 2021, the Company has revenue producing operations. On
September 30, 2022, the Company acquired 1880nt which has profitable operations. However, while Ciscom
consolidated operations are cash flow positive following the closing of the 1880nt acquisition, the Company
may require additional funds, and there is no assurance that the Company will be successful in obtaining such
additional financing.

No Established Market

The Company has applied to list its Common Shares on the CSE. Listing will be subject to the Company fulfilling
all the listing requirements of the CSE. There is currently no market through which the Company’s securities
may be sold.

Limited Operating History

The Company is an early-stage company. As such, the Company will be subject to all of the business risks and
uncertainties associated with any new business enterprise, including under-capitalization, cash shortages,
limitations with respect to personnel, financial and other resources and lack of revenues. There is no
assurance that the Company will be successful in achieving a return on shareholders’ investment and the
likelihood of success of the Company must be considered in light of the problems, expenses, difficulties,
complications and delays frequently encountered in connection with the establishment of any business.

Although no securities are being offered pursuant to this prospectus, any investment in the Common Shares
carries a high degree of risk and should be considered speculative by purchasers. There is a low probability of
dividends being paid on the Common Shares.

Lack of Operating Cash Flow
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Following the closing of the MFD acquisition on September 1, 2021, the Company has secured a source of
operating cash flow. Following the closing of the 1880nt acquisition on September 30, 2022, the Company now
has positive operating cash flow. However, Ciscom has had negative operating cash flows from operations since
its inception. During the period following the date of this Prospectus, the Company may continue to incur
negative cash flow from operations and may expend a portion of its unallocated cash to fund such negative
cash flow.

The Company’s failure to achieve profitability and positive operating cash flows, on a consolidated basis, could
have a material adverse effect on its financial condition and results of operations. If the Company sustains
losses over an extended period of time, it may be unable to continue its business. There can be no assurance
that the Company will realize revenue or achieve profitability.

As at December 31, 2020, the Company had a negative working capital balance of $51,968. On December 31,
2021, the Company had a positive working capital balance of $650,597 and $1,006,133 in cash. Following the
closing of the 1880nt acquisition, on September 30, 2022, the Company had $1,708,683 in cash, no investments
and a negative working capital of $2,948,610. On April 30,2023, the Company had $221,811 in cash and no
investments and a negative working capital of $3.130,753. The negative working capital is related to a one-
time purchase price payment of $1,163,521 due for the acquisition of 1880nt and the revolving operating loan
financing obtained from HSBC in the amount of $2,500,000 used to secure the acquisition of 1880nt that must
be presented as a current liability under IFRS. This $2,500,000 revolving operating loan has no repayment
requirement and remains at that level at all times. However, pursuant to this credit facility, HSBC retains the
right to call this loan at any time in its sole discretion.

As Ciscom is acquiring SMEs using a combination of cash and shares, the ratio of which is based on size,
profitability, economic environment and other risk factors, the cash versus shares proportions will vary from
one transaction to the next.

Aside from its M&A activities, the Company does not anticipate purchasing significant assets. The Company
has access to shared offices at 20 Bay Street, Suite 1110, Toronto, ON and will operate virtually in addition to
leveraging operating subsidiaries’ locations and facilities.

Resale of Common Shares

The continued operations of the Company will be dependent upon its ability to generate operating revenues
and to procure additional financing. There can be no assurance that any such revenues can be generated or
that other financing can be obtained. If the Company is unable to generate such revenues or obtain such
additional financing, any investment in the Company may be lost. In such event, the probability of resale of
the Common Shares purchased would be diminished.

Price Volatility of Publicly Traded Securities

In recent years, the securities markets in the United States and Canada have experienced a high level of price
and volume volatility, and the market prices of securities of many companies have experienced wide
fluctuations in price which have not necessarily been related to the operating performance, underlying asset
values or prospects of such companies. There can be no assurance that continual fluctuations in price will
not occur. It may be anticipated that any quoted market for the Common Shares will be subject to market
trends generally, notwithstanding any potential success of the Company in creating revenues, cash flows or
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earnings.
No Assurance (Nature of the Securities)

The ownership of the Common Shares involves a high degree of risk and should be undertaken only by
investors whose financial resources are sufficient to enable them to assume such risks and who have no need
for immediate liquidity in their investment. The Common Shares should not be purchased by persons who
cannot afford the possibility of the loss of their entire investment.

Additional Funding Requirements

The acquisition of additional businesses will require additional capital. When such additional capital is
required, the Company will need to pursue various financing transactions or arrangements, including joint
venturing of projects, debt financing, equity financing or other means. Additional financing may not be
available when needed or, if available, the terms of such financing might not be favorable to the Company
and might involve substantial dilution to existing shareholders. The Company may not be successful in locating
suitable financing transactions in the time period required or at all. A failure to raise capital when needed
would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations.
Any future issuance of securities to raise required capital will likely be dilutive to existing shareholders. In
addition, debt and other debt financing may involve a pledge of assets and may be senior to interests of equity
holders. The Company may incur substantial costs in pursuing future capital requirements, including
investment banking fees, legal fees, accounting fees, securities law compliance fees, printing and distribution
expenses and other costs. The ability to obtain needed financing may be impaired by such factors as the capital
markets, the Company’s status as a new enterprise with a limited history and/or the loss of key management
personnel. Failure to obtain sufficient financing will result in a delay or indefinite postponement of
development of the business plan.

Dilution

Common Shares, including rights, warrants, special warrants, subscription receipts and other securities to
purchase, to convert into or to exchange into Common Shares, may be created, issued, sold and delivered on
such terms and conditions and at such times as the Board may determine. In addition, the Company may issue
additional Common Shares from time to time pursuant to Common Share purchase warrants and the options
to purchase Common Shares issued from time to time by the Board. The issuance of these Common Shares
could result in dilution to holders of Common Shares.

Regulatory Requirements

The Company and it subsidiaries are not subject to regulatory requirement at this time. However, it will be
subject the terms and conditions and rules and regulations of any stock exchange on which the Common Shares
are subsequently listed and the OSC.

Risks Associated with Acquisitions and Related to Ability to Continue as a Going Concern

Although there are no assurances that management’s plans will be realized, management believes that the
Company will be able to continue operations into the future. However, the continuation of the Company as a
going concern, and the risk to an investment in the Company, is dependent upon:
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the Company’s ability to successfully raise debt financing it requires;

the Company’s ability to find viable companies in which to invest or acquire and manage;

the Company’s ability to successfully manage the companies in which it invests or acquires; and
the Company’s ability to successfully expand, leverage and create the synergies in of its portfolio
companies.

il

Executive Employee Recruitment and Retention and Dependence on Key Personnel

Ciscom is dependent upon the personal efforts, performance and commitment of its senior officers and
directors, who are responsible for the future development of Ciscom’s business. Investors will be relying upon
the business judgment, expertise and integrity of Ciscom’s senior officers and directors. The loss of any key
executive or manager of the Company may have an adverse effect on the future of the Company’s business.
The number of persons skilled in acquisitions and operations may be limited and competition for such persons
can be high. As the Company’s business activity grows, it will require additional key financial, administrative as
well as additional operations staff. There is no assurance that it will be successful in attracting, training and
retaining qualified personnel as competition for persons with these skill sets increases. If the Company is not
successful in attracting, training and retaining qualified personnel, the efficiency of its operations could be
impaired, which could have an adverse impact on its future cash flows, earnings, results of operations and
financial condition.

Adverse General Economic Conditions

In recent years, the securities markets in Canada, have experienced volatility, and many companies have
experienced wide fluctuations in price that have not necessarily been related to the operating performance,
underlying asset values or prospects of such companies. There can be no assurance that continual fluctuations
in price will not occur. It may be anticipated that any quoted market for the Common Shares will be subject to
market trends and conditions generally, notwithstanding any potential success of the Company in developing
assets, adding additional resources, investments or creating revenues, cash flows or earnings. The value of
securities will be affected by market volatility. An active public market for the Common Shares might not
develop or be sustained. If an active public market for the Common Shares does not develop or continue, the
liquidity of a shareholder’s investment may be limited, and the price of the Common Shares may decline.

Economic and geopolitical uncertainty may negatively affect the business of the Company or its portfolio
companies. The markets for the products of the Company or its portfolio companies may depend on economic
and geopolitical conditions that affect the broader market. Economic conditions globally are beyond the
Company'’s control. In addition, acts of terrorism and the outbreak of hostilities and armed conflicts between
countries, including Russia’s recent invasion of Ukraine, can create geopolitical uncertainties that may affect both
local and global economies. Unfavorable economic conditions, geopolitical uncertainties and negative equity
market conditions may negatively impact new investment opportunities and have a negative impact on the value
of Ciscom’s existing portfolio. Unfavorable economic and market conditions could also decrease Ciscom’s net
income, reduce demand for its services and limit access to capital markets.

COVID-19 Coronavirus Outbreak

The current global uncertainty with respect to the spread of COVID-19, the consistently evolving nature of the
pandemic and local and international developments related thereto and its effect on the broader global
economy and capital markets may have a negative effect on the Company. While the precise impact of the
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COVID-19 outbreak on the Company remains unknown, rapid spread of COVID-19 and declaration of the
outbreak as a global pandemic has resultedin travel advisories and restrictions, certain restrictions on business
operations, social distancing precautions and restrictions on group gatherings which are having direct and
indirect impacts on businesses in Canada.

Force Majeure

The adverse effect of a force majeure, whereby certain parts or all of a contracts Ciscom may be bound by
cannot be performed by the parties thereto, could create risks outside the control of the Company, and
negatively impact results or potential acquisition opportunities.

Uncertainty of Use of Funds

Although the Company has set out its intended use of proceeds in this Prospectus, these intended uses are
estimates only and subject to change. While management does not contemplate any materialvariation,
management does retain broad discretion in the application of such proceeds. The failure by the Company to
apply these funds effectively could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, including the
Company’s ability to achieve its stated business objectives.

Competition and Maintenance of Client Relationships

The Company is in the business of M&A and the ensuing active management has several participants operating
at different levels. Most participants are targeting medium to large size organizations. The participant are
typically large conglomerates and private equity funds. Larger and smaller participants/competitors are
expected to continue to enter into market. Some of those competitors may be better known, may have greater
financial resources and/or may have more established operating histories than Ciscom.

The Company differentiates itself from its competitors (other participants) through its unique market approach
and investment philosophy, the significant experience and expertise of its executive officers and its Board of
Directors.

MFD and 1880nt have a several competitors in Ontario. Competitors range from advertising agencies, direct
marketing agencies, printers, specialized services and in-house ad/marketing departments. MFD and 1880nt
distinguish their businesses from competitors with its ability to manage large quantities linked to national
programs and dealing with different promotion versions very efficiently. As significant investments were made
in its IP, MFD and 1880nt handle volumes very efficiently which most organizations cannot offer when dealing
with large volumes, big-data and in a multitude of versions.

The ability of the Company’s operating subsidiaries to attract and maintain clients requires that it provide a
competitive offering of products and services that meet the needs and expectations of its clients. Subsidiaries’
ability to satisfy the needs or demands of their clients may be adversely affected by factors such as the inability
or failure to identify changing client needs or expectations or the inability to adapt in a timely and cost-effective
manner to innovative products and services offered by competitors.

Conflicts of Interest

Certain of the directors and officers of the Company will be engaged in, and will continue to engage in, other
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business activities on their own behalf and on behalf of other companies and, as a result of these and other
activities, such directors and officers of the Company may become subject to conflicts of interest. The OBCA
provides that in the event that a director has a material interest in a contract or proposed contract or
agreement that is material to the issuer, the director shall disclose his interest in such contract or agreement
and shall refrain from voting on any matter in respect of such contract or agreement, subject to and in
accordance with the OBCA.To the extent that conflicts of interest arise, such conflicts will be resolved in
accordance with the provisions of the OBCA.

Intellectual Property

The success Ciscom will depend in part upon its ability to protect intellectual property and proprietary
technologies and upon the nature and scope of the intellectual property protection held by the Company. The
ability to compete effectively and to achieve partnerships will depend on the ability of Ciscom to develop and
maintain proprietary aspects of its intellectual property and to operate without infringing on the proprietary
rights of others. The presence of such proprietary rights of others or theft of the Company’s intellectual
property could require financial resources and management attention to protect intellectual property rights,
which may be in excess of our ability to raise such funds.

Dividends

The Company has not declared or paid any dividends on its shares since inception and does not anticipate
paying any such dividends for the foreseeable future. Any decision to pay dividends on the shares of the
Company will be made by the Board on the basis of the Company’s earnings, financial requirements and other
conditions. Investors seeking dividend income or liquidity should not invest in the Company’s shares.

Reporting Issuer Status

As a reporting issuer, the Company will be subject to reporting requirements under applicable securities law
and stock exchange policies. Compliance with these requirements will increase legal and financial compliance
costs, make some activities more difficult, time consuming or costly, and increase demand on existing systems
and resources. Among other things, the Company will be required to file annual, quarterly and current reports
with respect to its business and results of operations and maintain effective disclosure controls and
procedures and internal controls over financial reporting. In order to maintain and, if required, improve
disclosure controls and procedures and internal controls over financial reporting to meet this standard,
significant resources and management oversight may berequired. As a result, management’s attention may
be diverted from other business concerns, which could harm the Company’s business and results of
operations.

The Company may need to hire additional employees to comply with these requirements in the future, which
would increase its costs and expenses.

Management of the Company expects that being a reporting issuer may make it more expensive to maintain
director and officer liability insurance. This factor could also make it more difficult for the Company to retain

qualified directors and executive officers.

Tax Issues
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Income tax consequences in relation to the Common Shares will vary according to the circumstances by each
purchaser of Common Shares. Prospective purchasers should seek independent advice from their own tax
and legal advisors prior to subscribing for Common Shares.

Early Stage of Development

Ciscom is at an early stage of development in its business. There can be no assurance that Ciscom’s business
will be profitable. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to generate sufficient activity to
be profitable in the future and Ciscom’s limited operating history makes an evaluation of its prospects difficult.
Future results of operations may fluctuate significantly based upon numerous factors, including economic
conditions, activities of competitors and the ability of the Company to create a diversified investment
portfolio of real estate financial services companies.

Losses on Investments

The nature and operational quality of Ciscom’s investments portfolio will impact upon Ciscom’s asset base and
the return it is able to generate on its investments. In its selection process, Ciscom targets certain industry
sectors. There can be no assurance that the nature of the investment will not be adversely impacted by general
economic or industry specific conditions, which in turn may adversely impact the value of Ciscom’s portfolio.

Inflation and Fluctuations in Interest Rates

Should Ciscom heavily rely on debt to finance its investments, a significant increase in market interest rates
could also adversely affect Ciscom’s net income and its market value. Inflation rates are generally measured
by the government and are reported as the Consumer Price Index (“CP1”). During times of higher and rising
rates of the CPI, investors may demand higher interest rates, which can lead to an increase in the Company’s
cost of borrowing. In addition, higher interest rates may lead to reduced profit margins and decreased
demand for the products and services provided by Ciscom.

Public Stock Exchange Listing of Common Shares Pending

Until the Common Shares of Ciscom are listed on any public stock exchange, they will have very limited liquidity.
The Company is applying to list its Common Shares on the CSE. Listing will be subject the Company fulfilling all
of the listing requirements of the CSE. The Company cannot provide assurances that an active trading market
will develop or will be sustained if listed. If an active public trading market does not develop, the liquidity of an
investment in the Company may be limited.

Risks Related to the Market

Sale by Ciscom shareholders. Ciscom Shareholders may choose to sell their shares, which could depress the
trading price of the Common Shares for as long as those sales are continuing. Sales of a substantial number of
Common Shares, or the perception that those sales may occur, could depress the prevailing market prices of
the Company’s shares, regardless of the Company’s business prospects.

Volatility of share prices. Share prices are subject to changes because of numerous factors beyond the
Company’s control, including reports of new information, changes in the Company’s financial situation, the
sale of the Shares in the market, the Company’s failure to achieve financial results in line with the expectations
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of analysts, or announcements by the Company or any of its competitors concerning results. There is no
guarantee that the market price of the Company’s shares will be protected from any such fluctuations in the
future.

Absence of prior public market. There has been no prior public market for the Common Shares, and an active
trading Market may not develop or, if it does develop, may not be sustained. The lack of an active market may
impair shareholders’ ability to sell their Common Shares at the time they wish to sell them or at a price that they
consider reasonable. The lack of an active market may also reduce the fair market value and increase the
volatility of the Common Shares. An inactive market may also impair the Company’s ability to raise capital by
selling Common Shares and to make acquisitions by using the Common Shares as consideration.

PROMOTERS

Each of the following shareholders, directors and executive officers of the Company is considered to be a
“promoter” of the Company as that term is defined in the Securities Act (Ontario). As at April 30, 2023,
respective ownership of Common Shares is the following:

Name and Type of Securities Number of Common Percentage of Common
Shares Shares
Owned Owned"?

Drew Reid (owned through Alkaneid Corp.) 5,050,000 9.8%

Michel Pepin 3,300,000 6.4%

Paul Gaynor 1,190,333 2.3%

Whittaker Inc. (directly owned by Paul 9,616,000 18.6%

Gaynor)

() Based on 51,563,831 Common Shares issued and outstanding as at April 30 2023.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS AND REGULATORY ACTIONS

Legal Proceedings

There are no legal proceedings outstanding, threatened or pending as of the date of this Prospectus by or
against the Company or to which it is a party or its business or any of its assets is the subject of, norto the
knowledge of the directors and officers of the Company are any such legal proceedings contemplated which
could become material to a purchaser of the Company’s securities.

Regulatory Actions

There have not been any penalties or sanctions imposed against the Company by a court relating to provincial
or territorial securities legislation or by a securities’ regulatory authority, nor have there been any other
penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body against the Company, and the Company has not
entered into any settlement agreements before a court relating to provincial or territorial securities legislation

or with a securities regulatory authority.

INTEREST OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS
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Except as disclosed elsewhere in this Prospectus with respect to the loan from Ciscom to Drew Reid, since the
incorporation of the Company on June 29, 2020, no director, executive officer or person that beneficially owns,
or controls or directs, directly or indirectly, more than 10% of any class or series of the outstanding voting
securities of the Company or any associate or affiliate of the foregoing has, or has had, any material interest,
direct or indirect, in any transaction prior to the date of this Prospectus or any proposed transaction that has
materially affected,or is reasonably expected to materially affect, the Company or any of its affiliates.

AUDITORS, TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

The auditors of the Company are SRCO Professional Corporation, Chartered Accountants, Park Place Corporate
Centre, 15 Wertheim Court, Suite 409, Richmond Hill, Ontario L4B 3H7 since their appointment on March 2,
2021.

TSX Trust, at its principal offices located at 100 Adelaide St W #301, Toronto, ON M5H 1S3, will be the
transfer agent and registrar of the Common Shares.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

The only material contracts entered into, or to be entered into, by the Company since the date of its
incorporation, other than those entered into in the ordinary course of business, are the following:

1. the MFD SPA between Ciscom, MFD and its shareholders dated August 29, 2020 and its ensuing
amendments;

2. the 1880nt SPA between Ciscom, 1880nt and its shareholders dated January 26, 2022 and its ensuing

amendments;

the employment agreements with Messrs. Reid and Pepin;

the loan from the Company in the amount of $180,000 to Drew Reid, as subsequently amended;

the Stock Option Plan;

a $1,400,000 convertible debenture agreement between the Company and the selling shareholders of

1880nt, accruing interest at a rate of 5% per annum, convertible into Common Shares at $0.45 per share

and repayable in full by September 30, 2025; and

7. a $6,000,000 credit facility agreement entered into with HSBC Bank Canada, an international Canadian
Schedule Il chartered bank.

oukWw

RIGHTS OF WITHDRAWAL AND RESCISSION

Securities legislation in certain of the provinces of Canada provide purchasers with the right to withdraw from
an agreement to purchase securities. This right may be exercised within two business days after receipt or
deemed receipt of a Prospectus and any amendment. In several of the provinces, securities legislation further
provides a purchaser with remedies for rescission or, in some jurisdictions, revisions of the price or damages
if the prospectus or any amendment contains a misrepresentation or is not delivered to the purchaser,
provided that such remedies for rescission, revisions of the price or damages are exercised by the purchaser
within the time limit prescribed by the securities legislation of the purchaser’s province. The purchaser should
refer to any applicable provisions of the securities legislation of the purchaser’s province for the particulars of
these rights or consult with a legal adviser.

CREDIT SUPPORTER DISCLOSURE
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The Company does not have any other credit supporter that has provided guarantees or other alternative
support of any form.

SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITIONS

MFD: On August 29", 2020, Ciscom entered into the MFD SPA as subsequently amended to acquire 100% of
all issued and outstanding shares of MFD. The MFD Acquisition closed on September 1, 2021.

Under the MFD SPA, Ciscom purchased 100% of the shares of MFD for an amount of $3,500,000 to be satisfied
with the payment of $1,000,000 in cash and $2,500,000 in Ciscom Common Shares valued at $0.25 per share
(share issuance of 10,000,000 Common Shares). The selling shareholders of MFD are entitled to an Earn-Out in
a maximum amount of $500,000 based on cumulative revenue increases of 26% for the years 2022 and 2023
when compared to 2020. On closing, MFD had approximately $300,000 in cash.

Concurrently with the closing of the MFD Acquisition, Ciscom raised bank debt (5-year opened term loan) in
the amount of $1,000,000 with a Schedule | Canadian chartered bank to satisfy the cash portion of the MFD
Acquisition. Messrs. Reid, Pepin and Gaynor have personally guaranteed this loan of $1,000,000, and such
guarantees are joint and several for a total of $500,000, representing 50% of the original loan. On the closing
of the 1880nt Acquisition, Ciscom paid-out the loan.

1880nt: On January 26", 2022, Ciscom entered into the 1880nt SPA to acquire 100% of all issued and
outstanding shares of 1880nt from its shareholders. The 1880nt SPA was subsequently amended pursuant to
amending agreements dated May 31, 2022 and August 31, 2022 between Ciscom, 1880nt and its shareholders.
The 1880nt Acquisition was completed on September 30, 2022.

Under the 1880nt SPA, Ciscom is purchasing 100% of all issued and outstanding shares of 1880nt for an amount
of approximately $11,887,250 to be satisfied with the payment of $5,800,000 in cash, an earn-out of
$1,250,000, a convertible debenture of $1,400,000 and $3,435,250 in Common Shares valued at $0.45,
resulting in a share issuance of 7,633,889 Common Shares. The 1880nt Earn-Out of $1,250,000 can be
increased to a maximum amount of $1,500,000 based on an aggregate revenue increase of 14.5% for the years
2022 and 2023 when compared to 2021.

To satisfy the cash portion of the 1880nt Acquisition and repay the remaining portion of the loan taken for the
MFD Acquisition, Ciscom secured a credit facility with HSBC Bank Canada, an international Canadian Schedule
Il chartered bank. The facility consists of a $3,500,000 acquisition loan being amortized over 36 months and a
line of credit in the amount of $2,500,000 guaranteed by the accounts receivable of the Company and its
subsidiaries. The HSBC facility is guaranteed by the Company and its subsidiaries (GSA and PPSA).

FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCLOSURE FOR ISSUER

Please refer to Schedules “A” through “V” for financial statements MD&As and pro-forma statements for
Ciscom, MFD and 1880nt.

EXPERTS

Certain legal matters in connection with the Prospectus will be passed upon on behalf of the Company
by CP LLP and with regard to certain tax matters by SRCO Professional Company as the case may be. As at
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the date hereof, the partners and associates of CP LLP, counsel to the Company, do not own, directly or
indirectly, any outstanding shares of the Company.

The audited financial statements of the Company included in this Prospectus were passed upon on behalf of
the Company by SRCO Professional Corporation, Chartered Accountants, and their audit report is included
herein. SRCO Professional Corporation is independent with respect to the Company within the meaning of
the Rules of Professional Conduct of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario. As at the date hereof,
the partners and associates of SRCO Professional Corporation do not own, directly or indirectly, any
outstanding shares of the Company.

OTHER MATERIAL FACTS

There are no other material facts to disclose that are not disclosed within this Prospectus.
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Dated: June 5, 2023

CERTIFICATE OF CISCOM CORP.

This Prospectus constitutes full, true and plain disclosure of all material facts relating to the
securities previously issued by the Issuer as required by the securities legislation of Ontario.

By: (signed) Drew Reid

Drew Reid
Executive Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

By: (signed) Paul Gaynor

By: (signed) Michel Pepin

Michel Pepin
President & Chief Financial
Officer

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Paul Gaynor
Independent Director

By: (signed) Shaun Power

Shaun Power
Independent Director

CERTIFICATE OF THE PROMOTERS OF CISCOM CORP.

Dated: June 5, 2023

This Prospectus constitutes full, true and plain disclosure of all material facts relating to the
securities previously issued by the Issuer as required by the securities legislation of Ontario.

By: (signed) Drew Reid

Drew Reid
Promoter

By: (signed) Paul Gaynor

Paul Gaynor
Promoter
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By: (signed) Paul Gaynor

Whittaker Inc.
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Schedule A
Audited Financial Statements of Ciscom Corp. as at December 31, 2020

Financial Statements

Ciscom Corp.

For the period from June 29, 2020 (Incorporation Date) to December 31, 2020

(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders of Ciscom Corp.
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Ciscom Corp. (the “Company”), which comprise the statement of
financial position as at December 31, 2020, and the statements of loss and comprehensive loss, changes in
shareholders’ deficiency, and cash flows for the period from June 29, 2020 (Incorporation Date) to December 31,
2020, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Company as at December 31, 2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the period from June
29, 2020 (Incorporation Date) to December 31, 2020 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
(continues)
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SRCO

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of Ciscom Corp. (continued)
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of

the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

SRCO Professional Corporation
Richmond Hill, Canada CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS

August 15, 2021 Authorized to practice public accounting by the
Chartered Professional Accountants of Ontario
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Ciscom Corp.
Statement of Financial Position
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

As at December 31, 2020

$
ASSETS
CURRENT
Cash 6,066
Harmonized sales tax recoverable 16,375
Acquisition deposit [note 10] 10,000
Total assets 32,441
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ DEFICIENCY
CURRENT
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities [note 4] 84,409
Total liabilities 84,409
SHAREHOLDERS’ DEFICIENCY
Share capital [notes 5 and 6] 121,750
Shares to be issued [notes 5 and 6] 30,000
Share options reserve [notes 6] 20,361
Accumulated deficit (224,079)
Total shareholders’ deficiency (51,968)
Total liabilities and shareholders’ deficiency 32,441

Subsequent events [note 10]
See accompanying notes

Approved on behalf of the Board:

Director

Director
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Ciscom Corp.
Statement of Loss and Comprehensive Loss
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

{}

For the period from June 29,
2020 (Incorporation Date) to
December 31, 2020

$
EXPENSES

Professional services 111,853
General and administrative 30,615
Share based compensation [notes 5 and 6] 81,611
TOTAL EXPENSES 224,079
NET LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES (224,079)

Current income tax [note 7] -

Deferred income tax [note 7] -
NET LOSS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (224,079)
Basic and diluted loss per share (0.2206)
Weighted average number of common shares 1,015,753

See accompanying notes
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Ciscom Corp.

Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Deficiency

(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

Number of
Number of common
common Share shares Shares to Share options Accumulated
shares capital to be issued be issued reserve deficit Total
$ $ $ $ $

Balance, June 29, 2020 - - - - - - -

Issuance of common shares [note 6] 4,775,000 90,500 - - - - 90,500

Issuance of stock options [notes 5 and 6] - - - - 20,361 - 20,361

Issuance of shares for services [notes 5 and 6] 6,500,000 31,250 4,956,116 30,000 - - 61,250

Net loss and comprehensive loss - - - - - (224,079) (224,079)

Balance, December 31, 2020 11,275,000 121,750 4,956,116 30,000 20,361 (224,079)  (51,968)
See accompanying notes
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Ciscom Corp.
Statement of Cash Flows
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

For the period from June
29, 2020

(Incorporation Date) to
December 31,

2020
$
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss (224,079)
Items not affecting cash:
Share based compensation 81,611
Changes in non-cash working capital balances:
Harmonized sales tax recoverable (16,375)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 84,409
Cash used in operating activities (74,434)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition deposit (10,000)
Cash used in investing activities (10,000)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issuance of common shares 90,500
Cash provided by financing activities 90,500
INCREASE IN CASH 6,066
CASH - BEGINNING OF PERIOD -
CASH — END OF PERIOD 6,066

Supplementary cash flow information
Interest income

Income tax paid

See accompanying notes
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Ciscom Corp.
Notes to Financial Statements
For the period from June 29, 2020 (Incorporation Date) to December 31, 2020

1. NATURE OF BUSINESS
Ciscom Corp. (the “Company”) is incorporated under the Business Corporations Act of Ontario on June 29, 2020.
The Company’s principal business is investing in or acquiring operating companies in the ICT and assuming an active
role in the management of these companies to mitigate risk and maximize growth.
The office address of the Company is 20 Bay Street, Suite 1110, Toronto, Ontario, M5J 2N8.
2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

2.1 Basis of presentation and statement of compliance
These financial statements for the Company for the period from June 29, 2020 (Incorporation Date) to December 31,
2020 have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).
These financial statements were approved and authorized for issuance by the Company’s Board of Directors on
August 15, 2021. These financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars which is also the Company’s functional
currency. The accounting policies have been applied consistently in these financial statements, unless otherwise
indicated.

2.2 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair value, as explained.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The Company’s functional currency is the Canadian dollar.
These financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars (“CAD”), which is the Company’s presentation
currency.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Cash

Cash represents amounts deposited with the financial institution.
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Ciscom Corp.
Notes to Financial Statements
For the period from June 29, 2020 (Incorporation Date) to December 31, 2020

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current income tax expense and deferred income tax expense. Current
income tax expense is based on taxable income for the period. Income tax is recognized in the statement of loss and
comprehensive loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is
recognized in equity.

Current income tax is the expected income tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the period,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized based on differences in the financial statement carrying
amount for assets and liabilities and the associated tax balance.

Deferred income tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Temporary differences
are not provided for goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable loss and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will
probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred income tax provided is based on the expected
manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date.

Deferred income tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax credits
carried forward and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that there will be taxable income against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current income
tax assets against current income tax liabilities, when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and when the Company intends to settle its current income tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

On June 29, 2020, the Company adopted IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment, which clarified how to

apply the recognition and measurement requirement in IAS 12, Income Tax, when there is uncertainty over income
tax treatments. There are no significant adjustments to the amounts recognized in the financial statements.
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Ciscom Corp.
Notes to Financial Statements
For the period from June 29, 2020 (Incorporation Date) to December 31, 2020

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.3 Financial instruments

The three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at amortized cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”), and fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). The classification of financial
assets under is generally based on the business model in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash
flow characteristics. Further, derivatives embedded in contracts where the host is a financial asset in the scope of the
standard are never separated. Instead, the hybrid financial instruments as a whole is assessed for classification.

a) Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

IFRS 9 contains a new classification and measurement approach for financial assets that reflects the business model
in which assets are managed and their cash flow characteristics. Financial assets are classified and measured based
on three categories: amortized cost (“AMC”), fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) and fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”). Financial liabilities are classified and measured in two categories: amortized
cost or FVTPL. Under IFRS 9, derivatives embedded in contracts where the host is a financial asset in the scope of
the standard are not separated, but the hybrid financial instrument as a whole is assessed for classification.

The Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities are classified as follows:

Classification under IFRS 9

Cash Amortized cost
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities Amortized cost

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortized costs, FVTPL, or FVTOCI. Financial
assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its business model for
managing assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period
following the change in the business model. All other financial assets are initially recognized when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All other financial assets are initially measured at
fair value plus, for items not classified as FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at amortized costs are measured at cost using the effective interest

method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.
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Ciscom Corp.
Notes to Financial Statements
For the period from June 29, 2020 (Incorporation Date) to December 31, 2020

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

All financial liabilities are initially recorded at fair value and designated upon inception as FVTPL or other financial
liabilities. All other financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities classified as other financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value less directly attributable
transaction costs. After initial recognition, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Financial liabilities classified as FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as FVTPL. Transaction costs on financial liabilities classified as FVTPL are
expensed as incurred. Fair value changes on financial liabilities classified as FVTPL are recognized through the
statement of comprehensive income/(loss). At the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial recognition,
financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized directly in the
statement of comprehensive income/(loss) in the period in which they arise.

b) Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in IAS 39 with a forward-looking “expected credit loss” (“ECL’’) model.
The ECL model requires judgement, including consideration of how changes in economic factors affect ECLs, which
will be determined on a probability-weighted basis. The new impairment model is applied, at each reporting date, to
the Company’s financial assets measured at amortized cost. Impairment losses are recorded in profit or loss with the
carrying amount of the financial asset reduced through the use of impairment allowance accounts.

c) Derecognition

The Company derecognizes financial assets only when the contractual rights to cash flows from the financial assets
expire, or when it transfers the financial assets and substantially all of the associated risks and rewards of ownership
to another entity. Gains and losses on derecognition are recognized in profit or loss. The Company derecognizes
financial liabilities only when its obligations under the financial liabilities are discharged, cancelled or expired.
Generally, the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration
paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in profit or loss.
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Ciscom Corp.
Notes to Financial Statements
For the period from June 29, 2020 (Incorporation Date) to December 31, 2020

3.SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

At each date of the statements of financial position, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is an indication that those assets have suffered an

impairment loss. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the assets belong.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing the value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs
of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognized immediately in the statement of loss and comprehensive loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a re-
valued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or cash
generating unit) in prior periods. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change
in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized.

3.5 Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make estimates and
judgements that affect the applications of accounting policies regarding certain types of assets, liabilities, revenues,
and expenses in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements. Estimates and judgments are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the year in which the estimates are revised and
in any future years affected. These estimates and judgments are based on management’s historical experience, best
knowledge of current events or conditions and activities that the Company may undertake in the future. Actual results
could differ materially from these estimates.

{ 79



Ciscom Corp.
Notes to Financial Statements
For the period from June 29, 2020 (Incorporation Date) to December 31, 2020

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.5 Significant accounting judgments and estimates (continued)

Information about significant judgments and estimates in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

i) Determination of current and deferred income taxes
ii) COVID-19

Determination of current and deferred income taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it
relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in which case the income tax is also
recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income. Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are only offset if a legally enforceable right exists to offset the amounts
and the Company intends to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of all qualifying temporary differences arising between the tax basis of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined on a non-
discounted basis using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the deferred tax asset or liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that the assets can be recovered. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

COVID-19
Due to the disruption of the COVID-19 crisis, the Company’s business activities might be subject to certain level of
adverse impact. To the date of the issuance of these financial statements, the Company is still assessing the impact
on its business, results of operations, financial position and cash flows, which will be accounted for when the reliable
estimates will become available.

3.6 Foreign currency translation
In preparing the financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency are

translated at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at
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Ciscom Corp.
Notes to Financial Statements
For the period from June 29, 2020 (Incorporation Date) to December 31, 2020

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)
that date. Exchange gains and losses are recognized on a net basis in the statement of loss and comprehensive loss.
3.7 Share capital
Common shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of common shares and
units are recognized as a deduction from equity. The Company records proceeds from share issuances net of issue
costs and any tax effects.
3.8 Share-based payment
Where common shares are issued to employees and non-employees for services received, they are recorded at the
fair value of the service received at the grant date. The issuance date fair value is recognized in profit or loss over the

vesting period.

Stock purchase options that have been granted is measured by using Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model and is
recognized in profit or loss over the vesting period with a corresponding increase in stock option reserves.

3.9 Loss per share

Loss per share is calculated by dividing the total net loss by the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period. Outstanding warrants as at December 31, 2020 has not been factored into the calculation as they
are considered anti-dilutive.

3.10 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) that has arisen as a
result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the present
value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

3.11 Standards issued but not yet effective
The Company has evaluated all recent accounting pronouncements up to the date of issuance of these financial

statements, and conclude that these pronouncements are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Company’s financial statements.
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Ciscom Corp.
Notes to Financial Statements
For the period from June 29, 2020 (Incorporation Date) to December 31, 2020

4. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

As at December 31, 2020

$

Accounts payable 75,409
Accrued liabilities 9,000
84,409

Advances from related parties in amount of $434 is included in accounts payable (note 5).
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Ciscom Corp.
Notes to Financial Statements
For the period from June 29, 2020 (Incorporation Date) to December 31, 2020

5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
Related parties are defined as management and principal shareholders of the Company and/or members of their
immediate family and/or other companies and/or entities in which a principal shareholder, director or senior officer
is a principal owner or senior executive.

Related party transactions, with entity with common management and shareholders, are as follows:

For the period from June
29, 2020 (Incorporation
Date) to December 31,
2020

$
Shareholders Advance 434

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Company, including directors, advisory board members, officers of the Company. The
following share-based compensations were awarded by the Company during the period from June 29, 2020
(Incorporation Date) to December 31, 2020:

e On November 10, 2020, the Company granted an aggregate of 2,225,000 share purchase options under the
Company’s share option plan to certain directors, officers, and consultants of the Company. The options are
exercisable at $0.10 per share, are vested immediately, and shall be exercisable for a term of 5 years. The value
of these options in amount of $20,361 was calculated using the Black-Scholes pricing model with the following
assumptions: (i) expected option life of 5 years; (ii) risk free rate of 0.26%; (iii) dividend yield of nil; (iv)
expected volatility of 100%; and (v) share price of $0.019 at the time of grant for a valuation of $0.0092 per
option (note 6).

e On November 10, 2020, the Company issued 6,500,000 common shares to management and directors for
various professional services provided to the Company. The fair value of the share-based compensation
transaction, in the amount of $31,250, was determined by fair value of those services received by the Company
(note 6).
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Ciscom Corp.
Notes to Financial Statements
For the period from June 29, 2020 (Incorporation Date) to December 31, 2020

6. SHARE CAPITAL
a) Authorized:
Unlimited number of common shares, one vote per share, without par value.

Issuances of common shares are recorded in “share capital” in the statement of financial position.

b) Issued:
As at December 31, 2020
$
4,775,000 common shares pursuant to private placement 90,500
6,500,000 common shares for services provided 31,250
121,750

Shares issued and to be issued for service provided

On November 10, 2020, the Company issued 6,500,000 common shares to management and directors for various
professional services provided to the Company. The fair value of the share-based compensation transaction, in the
amount of $31,250, was determined by fair value of those services received by the Company.

During the year ended 2020, the Company received certain professional service with a service provider and per
agreement, the Company would issue 4,965,116 common shares to compensate the service provider. The fair value of
the share-based compensation transaction, in the amount of $30,000, was determined by fair value of those services
received by the Company. Subsequent to year ended December 31, 2020, the Company issued 4,965,116 common
shares.

Share options

On November 10, 2020, the Company granted an aggregate of 2,225,000 share purchase options under the Company’s
share option plan to certain directors, officers, and consultants of the Company. The options are exercisable at $0.10
per share, are vested immediately, and shall be exercisable for a term of 5 years. The value of these options in amount
of $20,361 was calculated using the Black-Scholes pricing model with the following assumptions: (i) expected option
life of 5 years; (ii) risk free rate of 0.26%; (iii) dividend yield of nil; (iv) expected volatility of 100%; and (v) share
price of $0.019 at the time of grant for a valuation of $0.0092 per option.
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Ciscom Corp.
Notes to Financial Statements
For the period from June 29, 2020 (Incorporation Date) to December 31, 2020

7. INCOME TAXES

The Company’s Canadian operations are subject to income tax at a combined Federal and Provincial statutory income
tax rate of 26.5% for the period from June 29, 2020 (Incorporation Date) to December 31, 2020 are as follows:

For the period from
June 29, 2020 (Incorporation Date) to December 31,

2020
Current income taxes $
Net loss before income taxes (224,079)
Tax rate 26.5%
Income tax recoverable (59,381)
Permanent differences 1,792
Unrecognized deferred tax assets 57,589

For the period from June 29, 2020 (Incorporation
Date) to December 31, 2020

Deferred income taxes $
Non-capital loss carry-forward 57,589
Deferred tax assets not recognized (57,589)

The Company’s ability to realize the tax benefits is dependent upon a number of factors, including the history of
earnings and the future profitability of operations. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the asset to be recovered. Accordingly, a
corresponding full valuation allowance was recorded to deferred tax assets.

As at December 31, 2020, the Company had non-capital losses amounting to approximately $217,317 and will expire
in 2040.
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Notes to Financial Statements
For the period from June 29, 2020 (Incorporation Date) to December 31, 2020

8. FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS
Fair Value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability
or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value
measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
from the asset’s highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would utilize the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy. This is described, as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

* Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.
* Level 2 inputs are observable inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, such as quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in markets that are not

active, or other inputs that are observable directly or indirectly.

* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability that reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions
and are not based on observable market data.

The following table summarizes the fair values of recognized financial instruments. Unless otherwise noted, the

carrying value of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and Accounts payable for capital
expenditure approximates fair value for each financial instrument.
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8. FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (continued)

Fair Value (continued)

December 31, 2020

$
Carrying Value Fair Value
AMC Total
Financial Assets
Cash 6,066 6,066
December 31, 2020
$

Carrying Value Fair Value
AMC Total

Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 84,409 84,409

Financial Risk Management

The Company is exposed to credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s management oversees the management of
these risks. The Company’s management is supported by the Board that advises on financial risks and the appropriate
financial risk governance framework for the Company. The Company’s financial risk activities are governed by
appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with

Company policies and the Company risk appetite.

(a) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of unexpected loss if a customer or third party to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations. Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk
consist of cash, accounts receivable, share subscriptions receivable and loan receivable. The cash consists of money
held in a reputable Canadian bank. In order to reduce its credit risk from its loan receivable balances, the Company

keeps a close connection with the third party.
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8. FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (continued)
(a) Credit Risk (continued)

To reduce its credit risk from its accounts receivable and share subscriptions receivable balances, the Company
reviews a new client and share subscriber’s credit history before extending credit. The Company recognized an
impairment provision in amount of $NIL as at December 31, 2020.

(b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligation associated with financial
liabilities. The Company is exposed to this risk mainly in respect of its accounts payable and accrued liabilities. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities
when due. The Company manages liquidity risk through obtaining financing from its shareholders.

(c) Foreign Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk that the future cash flows or fair value of the Company’s financial instruments that are
denominated in a currency that is not the Company’s functional currency will fluctuate due to the change in foreign
exchange rate. The functional currency of the Company is the Canadian dollar. The Company is exposed to the
currency exchange rate risk on its accounts payable. During the year, the Company did not incur significant foreign
currency transactions. The Company does not use derivative financial instruments to mitigate its exposure to currency
risk. Management, however, mitigates currency risk by regular monitoring, transacting in stable currencies, matching
the foreign currency payables and minimizing the net exposure in any foreign currency at any point of time.

9. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor,
creditor and market confidence and sustain future development of the business. The capital of the Company consists
of equity.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of the changes in its economic
environment and the risk characteristics of the Company’s assets. To effectively manage the Company’s capital
requirements, the Company has in place planning, budgeting and forecasting process to help determine the funds
required to ensure the Company has the appropriate liquidity to meet its operating and growth objectives. There were
no externally imposed capital requirements to which the Company is subject as at December 31, 2020.
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10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Acquisition

On August 29, 2020, the Company entered into a Share Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) to acquire 100% of all issued
and outstanding shares of Market Focus Direct Inc. (“MFD”) of Markham, Ontario, from its shareholders with a
closing on October 30", 2020. On October 30", 2020, the SPA was amended to delay the Closing up to December
15 2020. On December 15™, 2020, the SPA was amended a second time to the delay the Closing up to March 15",
2021. On March 15™, 2021, the SPA was amended a third time to delay the Closing up to May 15", 2021. On May
13™, 2021, the SPA was amended a fourth time to delay the Closing up to July 15", 2021. On May 13", 2021, the
SPA was amended a fifth time to amend the purchase price. On July 15", 2021, the SPA was amended a sixth time
to extend the closing date to on or before August 15", 2021 as well as amend section 7.1. to “The Closing of the sale
and purchase shall take place at the offices of the Purchasers’ Counsel in Toronto, Ontario on the Closing Date or
upon such earlier or later time and date and manner as may be agreed upon by all of the parties hereto in writing.”

The purchase price of $3,500,000.00 is to be satisfied with a cash payment of $1,000,000 and $2,500,000 in Ciscom
Corp.’s common shares valued at a minimum of $0.25 per share (maximum share issuance of 10,000,000 shares).
The selling shareholders of MFD are entitled to an earn-out payment based on revenue performance for the years
2022 and 2023 to a cumulative maximum of $500,000. On the day of the closing of the acquisition, MFD will have
approximately $300,000 of positive working capital (current assets less all liabilities). The Company made a $10,000
down payment to MFD’s shareholders for the acquisition.

The Company and MFD work closely to negotiate a seventh amendment to further extend the closing date.

Loan

On February 5, 2021 the Company entered into a Loan Agreement in the amount of $50,000 with Whittaker Graphic
Systems Inc. (majority shareholder of Market Focus Direct Inc.). The loan matures on December 31, 2021 and has a
nominal single interest rate of 1% per year. The Company can repay in whole or in part any portion of the loan before
maturity. The loan is not guaranteed.

Financing

Subsequent to year end, the Company issued 13,290,000 common shares pursuant to private placement and received
proceeds in amount of $563,510.

Prospectus

The Company is in the process of filing a prospectus with the OSC to be listed on the CSE and have its shares listed
and publicly traded.
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Schedule B
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of Ciscom Corp. as at December 31, 2021

Consolidated Financial Statements
Ciscom Corp.
For the year ended December 31, 2021 and for the period from June 29, 2020 (Incorporation Date) to December 31,
2020

(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
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Chartered Professional Accountants
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sAco -

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders of Ciscom Corp.
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ciscom Corp. and its subsidiary (together the “Company”), which
comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the consolidated
statements of loss and comprehensive loss, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years ended December
31, 2021 and 2020, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audits of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audits of the consolidated financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance
with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audits of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

(continues)
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of Ciscom Corp. (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Company to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

SRCO Professional Corporation

Richmond Hill, Canada

April 12, 2022, except as to Note 2.1, 4, CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS
18(b) and 21, which are as of February 3, Authorized to practice public accounting by the
2023 Chartered Professional Accountants of Ontario
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Ciscom Corp.
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

As at December 31, 2021 2020
$ $
ASSETS
CURRENT
Cash 1,006,133 6,066
Trade and other receivables [note 5] 623,445 -
Harmonized sales tax recoverable 64,016 16,375
Prepaids and deposits [note 4] 74,024 10,000
1,767,618 32,441
Property and equipment [note 8] 5,124 -
Right of use assets [note 9] 7,918 -
Intangibles [note 4] [note7] 2,841,833 -
Goodwill [notes 4 and 7] - -
Total assets 4,622,493 32,441
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIENCY)
CURRENT
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities [note 6] 864,209 84,409
Lease liabilities [notes 10] 8,360 -
Deferred grants [note 15] 1,997 -
Loan payable — current portion [notes 12 and 14] 242,455 -
Contingent consideration liability [note 4] - -
1,117,021 84,409
NON-CURRENT
Convertible debenture loan from a related party [note 12] 131,800 -
Loan payable — noncurrent portion [notes 13 and 14] 757,577 -
Deferred grants [note 15] 4,176
Deferred tax liabilities [notes 4 and 17] 753,667 -
Total liabilities 2,764,241 84,409
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIENCY)
Share capital [notes 4 and 16] 4,038,012 121,750
Shares to be issued [note 16] - 30,000
Share options reserve [note 16] 32,008 20,361
Contributed surplus [note 12] 23,343 -
Accumulated deficit (2,235,111) (224,079)
Total shareholders’ equity (deficiency) 1,858,252 (51,968)
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity (deficiency) 4,622,493 32,441

Subsequent event